
 
Roll Call MEETING OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 

VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 
Wednesday, December 14, 2022 

 6:30 p.m. 

 
       IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING 

        PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE PLAN COMMISSION MEETING & PARTICIPATION 
 

      Plan Commission will Meet Electronically on Wednesday, December 14, 2022 
 

On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
University City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic. Due to the current order restricting gatherings of 
people and the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, the December 14, 2022 
meeting will be conducted via videoconference.  

 
 Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
 

Webinar   

 Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86871219858?pwd=cXZuZFNYRE9CQzdkUFJGNW5UMnBFZz09   

 Passcode: 844558 

 Or One tap mobile: 

     US: +13017158592,,86871219858#,,,,*844558#  or +13052241968,,86871219858#,,,,*844558#  

 Or Telephone: Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

         US: +1 301 715 8592  or +1 305 224 1968  or +1 309 205 3325  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 
646 931 3860  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 564 217 2000  or +1 669 444 9171  or +1 669 900 6833  
or +1 689 278 1000  or +1 719 359 4580  or +1 253 205 0468  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 
7799  or +1 360 209 5623  or +1 386 347 5053  or +1 507 473 4847  

 Webinar ID: 868 7121 9858 

 Passcode: 844558 

     International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kpAaQObvx  

 Citizen Participation 

Those who wish to provide a comment during the “Public Comment” and/or “Public Hearing” portions 
of the agenda: may provide written comments or request video participation invites to the Acting 
Director of Planning and Development ahead of the meeting. Please specify which case and portion 
of the agenda you wish to comment. 

ALL written comments or video participation invites must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the 
day of the meeting. Comments may be sent via email to: jwagner@ucitymo.org or mailed to the City 
Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention John L. Wagner, Director of Planning and Development. Such 
comments will be provided to the Plan Commission prior to the meeting. Comments will be made a 
part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting. 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard University City, Missouri 63130 314-505-8500 Fax:  314-862-3168 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86871219858?pwd=cXZuZFNYRE9CQzdkUFJGNW5UMnBFZz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kpAaQObvx
mailto:jwagner@ucitymo.org


 
 

December 14, 2022  
Plan Commission Agenda 

 
Please note, when submitting your comments or invites, a name and address must be provided. 
Please also note if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item, and a name and address are 
not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the official record. 

The City apologizes for any inconvenience the meeting format change may pose to individuals, but it 
is extremely important that extra measures be taken to protect employees, residents 
board/commission members and elected officials during these challenging times.  

 

    AGENDA 

     PLAN COMMISSION 
 

1. Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes – Approval of the August 24, 2022, September 28, 2022 and 
October 26, 2022 Plan Commission meeting minutes. 

3. Public Comments – (Limited to 3 minutes for individual’s comments, 5 minutes for 
representatives of groups or organizations.)  

4. Other Business 

a. Comprehensive Plan Update: planning NEXT 

5. Old Business  

a. 7701 Canton Avenue – Informal review of revised site plan 

    5. New Business 

b. Final Development Plan – FDP-05. 
Applicant: U-City, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Final Development Plan for Lot B, Market at Olive North, Plat 4 
Address: Lot B, Market at Olive North, Plat 4 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 

c. Map Amendment – REZ 22-11. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: U-City, LLC 
Request: Map Amendment to rezone 7.81 acres of land near 8601 Olive 
Boulevard, Phase IV of the Market at Olive development, from “PD-C” Planned 
Development Commercial District and “SR” Single-family Residential District to 
Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C), and to further consider 
approval of a Preliminary Site Development Plan for the proposed commercial 
development.  
Address: Lot C of Market at Olive North, Plat 4 
(VOTE REQUIRED)  
 

d. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-13 – Informal Review 
Applicant: Washington University – St. Louis 
Request: Allow “Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities” in the 
University City Civic Complex Historic District on lots less than 0.45-acre in area. 
 

e. Text Amendment – TXT 22-04. 
Applicant: City of University City 
Request: Amend §400.030 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Definitions, to change the 
definition of “Dormitory.”  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

 



 
 

December 14, 2022  
Plan Commission Agenda 

 
7. Reports 

a. Council Liaison Report 

b. Plan Commission By-Laws  

c. Third Ward Housing Task Force Update 

8. Adjournment 



 
           

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Via Video Conference 

 6:30 pm; August 24, 2022 
 
 

The Plan Commission held its regular session via video conference on Wednesday, August 
24, 2022. The meeting commenced at 6:31 pm and concluded at approximately 8:45 p.m. 

 
Call to Order – (6:31 pm.) Chairwoman Holly called the meeting to order.  
 

1. Roll Call 
 
Present      
Margaret Holly     
Mark Harvey  
Al Fleischer Jr. 
Ellen Hartz  
Patricia McQueen  
Charles Gascon 
 
Absent  
Victoria Gonzalez  
     
Staff Present 
John Wagner, Director of Planning and Development 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 
Jeff Hales City Council Liaison 

 
2. Reports. 

Council Liaison Report – Councilmember Hales updated the Commission on meetings 
with FEMA and the clean-up effort and commended the City Staff on the response to the 
July flood. 

3. Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from the July 27, 2022 Plan Commission meetings were approved, with minor 
corrections. Minutes were amended to reflect Mr. Gacon’s comments. Mr. Gascon 
wanted it to be on the record that he was not recommending this abatement and was 
not in favor of it because the city had not given the Plan Commission enough 
information.  
 
Mr. Harvey moved that the minutes be approved as amended.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
4. Old Business – None 
 
 
 

 
Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 



August 24, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
2 

 

5. New Business  
a. Consolidation Plat – SUB 22-09. 

Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
Request: Approval of Lot Consolidation Plat for Lots 6 and 7 of Phase II. 
Address: 8630 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the 
Staff Report and the City’s position. 

Caroline Saunders was present, representing Market at Olive. She explained why the 
lot consolidation was necessary. 

Ms. Holly asked if there were further questions. She asked for a motion to approve 
the consolidation. Mr. Fleischer so moved. Ms. Holly called for a vote.  

The motion passed unanimously. 

b. Record Plat and Right-of-Way Dedication Plat – SUB 22-10. 
Applicant: U-City, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Record Plat and Right-of-Way Dedication Plat for Phase IV  
Address: Northwest corner of the intersection of Olive Boulevard and Woodson Road. 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the 
Staff Report and the City’s position.  

Mr. Mulligan asked, and Dr. Wagner confirmed, that a revised plat was sent earlier 
that day to replace the one in the packet. 

Caroline Saunders and George Stock, representing Market at Olive, were available 
for questions.  

There was a brief discussion regarding timing of the plat, the use of eminent domain 
to acquire the properties and the potential widening of Woodson Road. 

Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve the plat consolidation. Ms. McQueen so 
moved. Ms. Holly asked if there were questions. Ms. Holly called for a vote. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 

c. Right-of-Way Dedication Plat – SUB 22-11. 
Applicant: University Heights Subdivision 
Request: Approval of Right-of-Way Dedication Plat 
Address: Trinity Avenue, adjacent to City Hall  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the 
Staff Report and the City’s position.  
Myra Vandersall spoke in favor of the dedication.  



August 24, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
3 

 

Discussion ensued. 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve the dedication. Mr. Fleischer so moved. Ms. 
Holly called for a vote. The motion was passed with two abstentions. 

d. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-07. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: Bougie Bites STL, LLC 
Request: to allow a food truck to operate temporarily at 7001 Olive Boulevard in the 
“GC” General Commercial District. 
Address: 7001 Olive Boulevard 

 (VOTE REQUIRED) 

Chair Holly introduced the agenda item and Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff 
Report and the City’s position.  

Latoya Thompson was present and answered questions during the discussion.  

Mr. Mulligan presented a history of food trucks in University City. 

Ms. Holly opened the public hearing.  

Alison Carson spoke in full support of Ms. Thompson’s CUP. 

Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve the CUP. Ms. Hartz so moved.  

Discussion occurred, with the following conditions added:  
(1) 12 AM (midnight) closing time for the food truck. 
(2) The food truck shall be parked so as not to interfere with construction and 

shall maintain two (2) customer parking spaces. 
(3) The CUP on the property would be valid for one year with a potential of a six-

month extension from city staff. It will be valid from the date of planning 
commission approval.  

(4) Under no circumstances will the food truck operate on the site after the 
restaurant opens. 

A motion was made by Mr. Harvey to amend the motion on the floor with addition of the 
three conditions mentioned above. 

Ms. Holly called for a vote. It passed unanimously. 

Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve the CUP with the amended conditions. She then 
asked for discussion. There was a lengthy discussion. Miss Holly asked for a vote to 
approve the CUP. The motion passed with 5 in favor and 1 opposed. 

 
6. Other Business. 
 None 



August 24, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
4 

 

7. Reports 
1. Comprehensive Plan Update. The comprehensive plan steering committee is set 

to have a September kickoff meeting with the consultants on Tuesday, September 
13.  Ms. McQueen mentioned that the third Ward task force is beginning to meet 
the third Monday of the month in person beginning September 19. They plan to 
hire a consultant. 

2. Election of officers. Ms. Holly was nominated to be chair; Ms. McQueen was 
nominated to be vice chair and Ms. Hartz was nominated to be the alternate. Vote 
was taken and these officers were unanimously approved. 

3. Mr. Harvey commended the sanitation staff and FEMA for the cleanup after the 
flood. He said it was miles ahead of what happened after the flood of 2008. 

8. Adjournment. 
Chairwoman Holly adjourned the meeting at 8:45 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 



 
           

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Via Video Conference 
 6:30 pm; September 28, 2022 
 
 

The Plan Commission held its regular session via video conference on Wednesday, 
September 28, 2022. The meeting commenced at 6:32 pm and concluded at approximately 
9:27 p.m. 

 
Call to Order – (6:32 pm.) Acting Chairwoman McQueen called the meeting to order.  
 

1. Roll Call 
 
Present       
Al Fleischer Jr. 
Ellen Hartz  
Patricia McQueen  
Charles Gascon 
 
Absent  
Victoria Gonzalez  
Margaret Holly  
Mark Harvey  
    
Staff Present 
John Wagner, Director of Planning and Development 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 
Jeff Hales City Council Liaison 

 
2. Approval of Minutes 

None – approval of August and September meeting minutes will be approved at a later 
meeting. 

 
Commissioner Gascon moved that the agenda items be re-ordered. b. moved to after e. Ms. 
McQueen asked for a vote on the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 4-0. Motion 
approved.  

 
3. Public Comments – (Limited to 3 minutes for individual’s comments, 5 minutes for 

representatives of groups or organizations.) There were no comments from the public. 

4. Old Business – None 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 



September 28, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
2 

 

5. New Business  
a. Text Amendment – TXT 22-03. 

Applicant: City of University City 
Request: Add “Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities, 
provided that such buildings shall be located upon sites containing 0.45 or more 
acres when located in the University City Civic Complex Historic District.” to list of 
Conditional Uses in the “PA” Public Activity District, §400.690 of the City’s Zoning 
Ordinance.  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 

Two representatives of Washington University were present for comments and 
questions, as was Stacey Wehe representing Washington University.  

Ms. Wehe provided a short presentation to the Commission. 

Commissioner Gascon asked several questions.  

Dr. Wagner reported that this proposal went before the code review committee on 
September 12th and passed 4 – 0.  

A discussion ensued.  

Commissioner Gascon thought the text amendment was too narrow in scope.  

Motion: 

Amend §400.690 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance A(12) to read: 

“Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities.” (the remainder of 
the existing part is deleted: “provided that such buildings shall be located upon sites 
containing two and one-half (2½) or more acres.” 

Amend Section §400.700 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance to read: 

Density and Dimensional Regulations. 

A. Minimum Lot Size. 

1. Permitted and conditional uses. Lot area and lot dimensions shall be adequate 
to provide the minimum setbacks required by this Section and required 
parking, as established under Article VII "Off-Street Parking and Loading 
Requirements", but in no instance shall a lot be less than two (2) acres in 
area, except as provided for in paragraph (2) below, provided that in the 
University City Civic Complex Historic District, in no instance shall a lot be less 
than 0.45-acre in area. 

Commissioner Gascon moved as stated by Mr. Mulligan.  



September 28, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
3 

 

Measure passed unanimously. 4 – 0 motion. Motion approved. 
 

 
b. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-08. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: Wallis Companies, dba Wallis Petroleum, LC 
Request: to allow a gasoline station and convenience store at 7360 Forsyth 
Boulevard in the “GC” General Commercial District 
Address: 7360 Forsyth Boulevard 

 (VOTE REQUIRED) 

Acting Chairwoman McQueen outlined the C.U.P review criteria, §400.2710.  

Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 

Kevin Kamp of Civil and environmental Consultants was present on behalf of the 
applicant. Discussion occurred. Mark Jordan from Wallis Company provided 
additional details regarding the application.  

Discussion ensued. 

Public hearing opened. Ms. Tracy Whelpley asked two questions regarding the 
site’s operating hours and whether a traffic study was done. The public hearing 
closed at 7:53 pm.  

Commissioner McQueen asked Dr. Wagner if this sets any precedents. The 
response was ‘no’.  

Additional discussion followed. 

Commissioner Gascon asked about lighting, signage and hours. Any changes to 
signage size should come back to the Commission.  

Commissioner Gascon moved to approve the CUP with the conditions noted in the 
Staff Report, with the addition that signage other than what is in the application 
should come back to the Plan Commission for approval. 

Motion passed unanimously, 4 – 0. Motion approved. 

c. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-09. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
Request: to allow a reduction of up to 20% in the number of required off-street 
parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 9 
of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District 
Address: Lot 9 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2 
(VOTE REQUIRED)  

Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position.  



September 28, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
4 

 

Caroline Saunders and David Hutkin presented their report on behalf of the 
Applicant.  

8:16 pm Public hearing opened.  No speakers. Closed at 8:17.  

Commissioner McQueen asked for a motion to approve the CUP reduction of 
10.75% or 10 spaces. Commissioner Gascon so moved.   

Discussion ensued. Motion passed unanimously, 4 – 0. 

d. Conditional Use Permit – CUP 22-10. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
Request: to allow a reduction of up to 20% in the number of required off-street 
parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot 
10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District 
Address: Lot 10 of the Market at Olive, Plat 2 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 

8:31 opened public hearing. No speakers. Closed at 8:32 pm.  

Commissioner McQueen asked Dr. Wagner if this sets a precedent. He stated that it 
does not.   

Caroline Saunders spoke for the developer.  

Discussion ensued. 

Commissioner McQueen asked for a motion to approve the CUP reduction of 
12.77% or 6 spaces. Commissioner Gascon so moved.  Motion passed 
unanimously, 4 – 0.   

e. Final Development Plan – FDP 22-03. 
Applicant: 170 and Olive Holdco, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Final Development Plan for the Market at Olive, Phase Two 
Development. 
Address: 8630 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 

Caroline Sanders spoke for the developer.  

Commissioner McQueen asked for a motion to approve the FDP.  

Commissioner Fleischer so moved.  

Commissioner Hartz proposed an Amendment: Landscape plan must be approved 
by Director of Planning and Development. Passed 4 – 0 Unanimously. Amendment 
approved. 



September 28, 2022 
Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

 
5 

 

Commissioner McQueen called for a vote on the motion. Motion passed with the 
Staff Report conditions, with the Landscape Plan amendment included. Passed 
unanimously, 4 – 0. 

f. Map Amendment – REZ 22-07. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: U-City, LLC 
Request: to rezone 2.28 acres of land from Planned Development 
Commercial District (PD-C), General Commercial District (GC) and Single-
family Residential District (SR), to Planned Development Commercial 
District (PD-C) and to further consider approval of a Preliminary Site 
Development Plan and Final Site Development Plan for the proposed 
commercial development. 
Address: Lot A and Common Ground, Market at Olive North 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 

Dr. Wagner provided a summary of the Staff Report and the City’s position. 

George Stock presented a short power point on behalf of the Applicant. 

Public hearing opened at 9:06 pm. Justin Lurk. Representative of Chick-fil-A 
spoke in favor of the application. Hearing closed at 9:07 pm.  

Commissioner McQueen asked for a motion to approve REZ 22-07 plan 
development commercial district. Gascon so moved. Vote passed 
unanimously. 4 – 0. Motion approved.  

Motion to approve the preliminary site development plan. Mr. Gascon asked 
about the drive-through. (The Final Development Plan was not considered 
this evening at the request of the Applicant.) 

Commissioner McQueen asked for a motion to approve the Planned 
Development Commercial District (PD-C). Mr. Gascon so moved.  

Vote was requested. Passed unanimously, 4 – 0.    

 
6. Other Business. 

None 

7. Reports. 

None 

8. Adjournment. 

Acting Chairwoman McQueen adjourned the meeting at 9:27 pm 



 
           

PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
Via Video Conference 

 6:30 pm; Wednesday, October 26, 2022 
 
 

The Plan Commission held its regular session via video conference on Wednesday, 
October 26, 2022. The meeting commenced at 6:31 pm and concluded at approximately 
9:28 p.m. 

 
Call to Order – (6:31 pm.) Chairwoman Holly called the meeting to order.  
 

1. Roll Call 
 
Present      
Al Fleischer Jr. 
Victoria Gonzalez   
Mark Harvey  
Ellen Hartz  
Margaret Holly  
Patricia McQueen  
Charles Gascon (joined at 6:37 p.m.) 
 
Absent  
None 
     
Staff Present 
John Wagner, Director of Planning and Development 
Mary Kennedy, City Planner 
John Mulligan, City Attorney 
Jeff Hales, City Council Liaison 

 
2. Approval of Minutes 

Approval of the August 24, 2022 and September 28, 2022 Plan Commission meetings were 
postponed to the next meeting. 

 
3. Public Comments 
 There were no public comments.  
 
4. Old Business – None 
 
5. New Business  

1. Comprehensive Plan Update  
An update on the process and purpose of the comprehensive plan process was 
presented by Sarah Kelley, Planning NEXT. 

 
2. Conditional Use Permit – CUP-22-11 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 



October 26, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 

Applicant: U. City, LLC 
Request: To allow a reduction of up to 20% in the number of required off-street 
parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance for Lot A 
of the Market at Olive, Plat 4, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial District. 
Address: Lot A, Market at Olive, Plat 4  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Ms. Kennedy gave the staff report. 
 
George Stock, consulting engineer for University City, was present. 
 
Public Hearing opened at 7:25 PM. No one spoke. Hearing was closed at 7:26 PM. 
 
A discussion occurred. Topics covered included Alfred Avenue remaining a private 
drive; the inclusion of “yield to pedestrians” signage; and sidewalk striping at three 
locations: (1) at the intersection of the east-west access drive and Woodson Road, 
(2) at the pedestrian crossing from the east-west access drive into the subject 
property, and (3) within the subject property to designate pedestrian crossing within 
the parking lot.  
 
Ms. Holly called for a motion to approve CUP-22-11 as written. Mr. Harvey so 
moved. 
 
Additional discussion ensued. 
 
Mr. Gascon moved to amend CUP-22-11 to reflect the actual reduction in parking as 
requested by the applicant, rather than the standard “up to 20% reduction.” A vote 
was taken by the Plan Commission 7-0. The amendment was approved. 
 
The approved amendment reads: “To allow a reduction of up to 8.5% in the number 
of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning 
Ordinance for Lot A of the Market at Olive, Plat 4, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial 
District. 
 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve CUP-22-11. The motion was approved by a 
vote of 7-0.  
 

3. Final Development Plan – FDP-22-04 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
Request: Approval of a Final Development Plan for Lot A, Market at Olive, Plat 4 
Address: Lot A, Market at Olive, Plat 4  
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Ms. Holly called for a motion to approve the Final Development plan as written, with 
conditions.  
 
Mr. Fleischer so moved. 
 
Mr. Fleischer moved to amend the motion to read “Lot A and Common Ground 2”. 
The amended motion was approved by a vote of 7-0. 
 



October 26, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 

A discussion ensued.  
 
Mr. Gascon moved to amend the plan to require that the final landscape plan be 
reviewed and approved by the Director of Planning and Development. The amended 
motion was approved by a vote of 7-0.  
 
A discussion occurred about access to the shared access drive in Common Ground 
2 by delivery vehicles. Ms. Holly moved to amend the staff report to include the 
following condition: “Condition 6. There will be no interference by pick-up delivery, or 
service vehicles servicing the businesses on Lots A or B with pedestrian or vehicular 
traffic in the common ground.” The amended conditions were approved by a vote of 
5-2. 
 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve FDP-22-04. The motion was approved by a 
vote of 7-0.  
 

4. Map Amendment – REZ-22-09 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
Request: Map Amendment to rezone 1.50 acres of land near 8601 Olive Boulevard 
from “GC” General Commercial District and “SR” Single-Family Residential District to 
Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C), and to further consider approval 
of a Preliminary Site Development Plan for the proposed commercial development.   
Address: Lot B of Market at Olive, Plat 4 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Mr. Gascon asked if there could be a change in the order of business so that there 
could be a discussion about the related CUP for parking reduction first. All members 
of the commission agreed. (CUP-22-12, agenda item below, was then discussed 
prior to REZ-22-09). 
 
Ms. Kennedy gave the staff report. 
 
Mr. Stock was present and available for questions.  
 
Public hearing was opened at 8:50 PM. No one spoke. The public hearing was 
closed at 8:51 PM. 
 
Ms. Holly called for a motion to approve REZ-22-09. Mr. Harvey so moved. 
 
A discussion ensued. 
 
Ms. Holly called for a vote. The proposed Map Amendment and Preliminary Site 
Development Plan were approved by a vote of 7-0. 

 
5. Conditional Use Permit – CUP-22-12.  

PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
Request: To allow for a reduction of up to 20% in the number of off-street parking 
spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning Ordinance, for Lot B of 
Market at Olive Plat 4, in the “PD-C” Planned Development Commercial district. 
Address: Lot B, Market at Olive Plat 4 



October 26, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 

(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
Ms. Holly opened the hearing at 8:59 PM. No one spoke. She closed the hearing at 
9:00 PM. 
 
Several questions were asked and discussion ensued. 
 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve CUP-22-12. Ms. Hartz so moved. 
 
A discussion ensued. 
Mr. Gascon moved to amend CUP-22-12 to reflect the actual reduction in parking as 
requested by the applicant, rather than the standard “up to 20% reduction.” A vote 
was taken by the Plan Commission 7-0. The amendment was approved. 
 
The approved amendment reads: “To allow a reduction of up to 16.4% in the number 
of required off-street parking spaces, as required by Section 400.2140 of the Zoning 
Ordinance for Lot B of the Market at Olive, Plat 4, in the “PD-C” Planned Commercial 
District. 
 
Further discussion ensued. 
 
Ms. Holly moved to amend the CUP-22-12 to include code compliance with regard to 
bicycle racks. The motion was approved by a vote of 7-0.  
 
Ms. Holly asked for a motion to approve CUP-22-12. The motion was approved by a 
vote of 7-0.  
 

6. Map Amendment – REZ-22-10. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Applicant: D3 Commercial Realty Group, LLC 
Request: Map Amendment to rezone 7.39 acres of land from 8610 to 8660 Olive 
Boulevard, from “IC” Industrial Commercial District to Planned Development 
Commercial District (PD-C), and to further consider approval of a Preliminary Site 
Development Plan for the proposed commercial development. 
Address: 8610 to 8660 Olive Boulevard 
(VOTE REQUIRED) 
 
This Map Amendment and Preliminary Site Development Plan were pulled from the 
agenda by the applicant.  
 

7. Other Business 
i. 7701 Canton Avenue Work Session 

Staff provided an update that the work session would be held at the next 
Plan Commission Meeting.  
 

ii. November Plan Commission Meeting 
A discussion ensued regarding the date of the next Plan Commission 
Meeting. The Commission decided it would coordinate via email to 
determine the meeting date.  
 

8. Reports 



October 26, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
Page 5 of 5 
 

 
 

i. Council Liaison Report – Mr. Hales expressed very strong appreciation 
for Dr. Wagner and his staff for the tireless work that they have done since 
the flood in July.  

ii. Third Ward Housing Task Force Update. Ms. McQueen reported that 
the task force has had five meetings and that they are moving forward but 
progress is slow.  
 

9. Adjournment. 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:28 PM. 



TO: 

FROM:  

DATE: 

M E M O R A N D U M 

Plan Commission 

John Wagner, Ph.D., Director of Planning and Development 

December 14, 2022 

SUBJECT: REZ 22-01 (“The Preserve at Canton”) 

On March 23, 2022, the Plan Commission recommended approval of a Map Amendment 
petition to change the zoning designation from Public Activity (PA) to Limited Residential (LR), 
to allow for the proposed townhome development known as “The Preserve at Canton.” The 
proposal included 111 units and widened the right-of-way to 50’ to accommodate a 30’-wide 
street and 10’ on either side of the street for sidewalk and tree lawn. 

The Applicant has further reduced the number of dwelling units to 100, provided additional 
renderings of the proposed townhomes, and provided additional clearance around the cellular 
tower.  

With the reduced number of dwelling units to 100, the proposed plan is well within the density 
permitted in the LR district for townhomes, per Section 400.220(D): 

“The maximum allowable density is twelve (12) dwelling units per net acre. However, the 
allowable density may be restricted to a lesser amount as established in the conditional use 
permit.”  

Gross acreage: 10.93 
Net acreage: 9.29 (15% reduction for dedicated land for street rights-of-way) 
Maximum permitted dwelling units: 111 (9.29 x 12 units per net acre).  

The applicant is proposing to maintain the location of the two access points as previously 
presented. Please see the attached drawings—revised preliminary site plan and renderings. 

Staff Recommendation 

Staff is recommending that the proposal be placed on an agenda for public hearing when the 
applicant is ready to proceed.  

Attachments: 

1. Revised Preliminary Plan and Renderings.

Department of Planning and Development
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168  
 



















CANTON AVE (50' W)

M
E

N
D

E
L

L
 D

R
IV

E

STREET C

S
T

R
E

E
T

 A

S
T

R
E

E
T

 B

S
T

R
E

E
T

 B

Sheet  Number:

2022130-00Project Number:

This document is only part of the total contract and/or
construction document package.  Other documents
could contain information that may not be depicted here.
The general contractor is responsible to provide all
bidders with all information and documents pertaining to
the complete scope of work.

The seal(s) and signature(s) apply only to the document to
which they are affixed, and expressly disclaim any
responsibility for all other plans, specifications, estimates,
reports or other documents or instruments relating to or
parts of the Architectural or Engineering project.

David Mason and Associates, Inc.
Missouri Certificate of Authority Number:
Engineer: 001103
Architect: 000620
Survey: 000336

TBSDesigned By:

TJR/NPBDrawn By:

TBSChecked By:

7/28/22Date:

Sheet  Title:

PRELIMINARY
SITEPLAN

No. Description Date

Professional Seal:

Todd B. Scheibe, P.E. - CIVIL
E-24757

77
01

 C
A

N
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E

TO
W

N
H

O
U

SE
S

800 South Vandeventer
St. Louis, Missouri  63110

p (314) 534-1030
f  (314) 534-1053

C100



 
 
 

Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

MEETING DATE: December 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER: FDP-22-05 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: 3 
 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
Location: Lot B, Market at Olive (Phase IV) 
Request: Final Development Plan approval 
 

Existing Zoning: PD-C Planned Development Commercial District 

Proposed Zoning: NA 

Existing Land Use: Vacant 

Proposed Land Use: Retail/restaurant building with drive-thru 

 
Surrounding Zoning: 

North:     SR – Single-Family Residential 
East:     PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 

South:     PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 

West:      PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 

Comprehensive Plan Conformance: 

[ x ] Yes [ ] No [ ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

[ ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [ ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Final Development Plan 

B. Building Elevations 

C. Landscape Plan  

D. Photometric Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FDP-22-05 – Market at Olive, Lot B 
Page 2 of 3 
  

 

Existing Property 

The subject property is referred to as Lot B in Phase IV of the Market at Olive Development. The 
1.50-acre tract was recommended for Map Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan 
approval from GC – General Commercial and SR – Single-Family Residential to PD-C – 
Planned Development Commercial by the Plan Commission on October 26, 2022.  

 
Applicant’s Request 

The applicant is requesting that the final development plan be approved to allow for the 
construction of a 7,700 square foot multi-tenant retail building with drive-thru, as shown on the 
attached plans. 

 
Analysis 
The attached plans have been modified slightly to address concerns of the Plan Commission 
from the Map Amendment petition. Those modifications include: 

1. Detailed landscape plans are provided, which have been reviewed by staff and meet the 
city’s landscaping requirements.  

2. Detailed photometric plans are provided, which have been reviewed by staff and meet the 
city’s lighting requirements.  

3. Bicycle parking is provided and meets the city’s requirements for the minimum number of 
spaces. 

4. The applicant has demonstrated that it meets the criteria set forth in §400.780(D)(2), 
allowing site coverage greater than 70%.  

5. Striped pedestrian crossing marks and yield signs have not yet been included at the three 
locations discussed at the October 26, 2022 Plan Commission meeting: (1) at the 
intersection of the east-west access drive and Woodson Road, (2) at the pedestrian 
crossing from the east-west access drive into the subject property, and (3) within the 
subject property to designate pedestrian crossing within the parking lot. 

 
The proposed Final Development Plan complies with §400.870, which states that final plan shall 
be in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary development plan. Modifications and 
refinements, resulting from the final design process, may be approved. In no event shall any 
modification of the development plan result in the following: 

6. A change in the use or character of the development; 

7. An increase in building or site coverage or increase in building height; 

8. An increase in the intensity of use (e.g., number of dwelling units); 

9. An increase in vehicular traffic generation or significant changes in traffic access and 
circulation; and 

10. A reduction in approved open space or required buffer areas. 
 

 

 
Conclusion/Recommendation 

Staff has determined that the Final Development Plan for Lot B of Phase IV of the Market at Olive 
Development meets the requirements of Section 400.870 of the Zoning ordinance and 
recommends approval of the plan with the following conditions: 



FDP-22-05 – Market at Olive, Lot B 
Page 3 of 3 
  

 

1. Pedestrian crossings shall be striped and yield signs provided, as described in the 
above report and as recommended by the Plan Commission on October 26, 2022. 

2. There will be no interference by pick-up delivery or service vehicles servicing the 
businesses on Lots A or B with pedestrian or vehicular traffic in the common ground. 



TITLE SHEET

C1.0

GENERAL NOTES:

1) Basis of Bearings Missouri State Plane Grid North

C1.0 TITLE SHEET
C2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS/DEMOLITION PLAN
C3.0 SITE PLAN
C4.0 SITE & GRADING PLAN
C5.0 SITE UTILITY PLAN

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

B

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 L
O

T 
B 

C
1.

0 
TI

TL
E 

SH
EE

T 
(3

)  
PL

O
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 1
8,

  2
02

2 
- 1

1:
58

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/18/22



33
7.

6

376'

108'

120'

190'

236.2'

249.4'

49'

WOODSON RD.

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

LOT B

LOT A

COMMON
GROUND

LOT C

COMMON
GROUND

LOT A AND C AND COMMON
GROUNDS NOT INCLUDED
IN THIS SUBMITTAL. (LOT A
SUBMITTED PREVIOUSLY)

EXISTING
CONDITIONS/

DEMOLITION PLAN

C2.0

BUILDING DEMOLITION

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

B

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 L
O

T 
B 

C
2.

0 
EX

 C
O

N
D

 A
N

D
 D

EM
O

 (2
)  

PL
O

TT
ED

:  
N

ov
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 1
1:

59
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/18/22



12

15 10
8

8

5

+/- 7,700 SQ. FT.
62 PARKING
STALLS

BLDG E

4

SITE PLAN

C3.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

B

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 L
O

T 
B 

C
3.

0 
SI

TE
 P

LA
N

 (2
)  

PL
O

TT
ED

:  
N

ov
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 1
1:

59
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/18/22



+/- 7,700 SQ. FT.
62 PARKING
STALLS

BLDG E

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

F.F.=578.75

SITE &
GRADING PLAN

C4.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

B

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 L
O

T 
B 

C
4.

0 
G

R
AD

IN
G

 (2
)  

PL
O

TT
ED

:  
N

ov
 1

8,
  2

02
2 

- 1
1:

59
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/18/22



12

15 10
8

8

5

+/- 7,700 SQ. FT.
62 PARKING
STALLS

BLDG E

4

SITE UTILITY
PLAN

C5.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

B

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

 F
O

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

61
00

\2
17

61
93

\C
iv

il\
En

tit
le

m
en

ts
\6

19
3-

en
tit

le
m

en
ts

.d
w

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 L
O

T 
B 

C
5.

0 
U

TI
LI

TY
 (2

)  
PL

O
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 1
8,

  2
02

2 
- 1

1:
59

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/18/22



24'-0"

22'-0"

20'-0"

22'-0"

24'-0"

24'-0"

22'-0"

24'-0"

20'-0"20'-0"

22'-0"

24'-0"

24'-0"

20'-0"

18'-0"

20'-0"

27122407.00

BUILDING E

EXTERIOR

ELEVATIONS &

MATERIALS

11/15/2022

MARKET AT OLIVE

UNIVERSITY CITY, MO 63132

SOUTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATIONWEST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION



27122407.00

BUILDING E

SOUTHEAST

PERSPECTIVE

11/15/2022

MARKET AT OLIVE

UNIVERSITY CITY, MO 63132

SOUTHEAST PERSPECTIVE



27122407.00

BUILDING E

SOUTHWEST

PERSPECTIVE

11/15/2022

MARKET AT OLIVE

UNIVERSITY CITY, MO 63132

SOUTHWEST PERSPECTIVE







 

POLE FIXTURES MOUNTED 35' ABOVE GRADE INCLUDING BASE

LIGHT LEVELS CALCULATED ON THE GROUND

DESIGN IS BASED ON CURRENT INFORMATION PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF REQUEST.

ANY CHANGES IN MOUNTING HEIGHT OR LOCATION, LAMP WATTAGE, LAMP TYPE, AND

EXISTING FIELD CONDITIONS, THAT EFFECT ANY OF THE PREVIOUSLY MENTIONED, WILL

VOID CURRENT LAYOUT AND REQUIRE A CHANGE REQUEST AND RECALCULATION.

1
3

7

2
2

1
2

6

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 F

6
0
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

T
A

L
L
S

1
2

1
6

1
0

8

8

9

+
/-

 7
,7

0
0

 S
Q

. 
F

T
.

6
3
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
S

T
A

L
L

S

4
1

337.
6

3
7

6
'

108'

1
2

0
'

190'

2
3

6
.2

'

2
4

9
.4

'

49'

(1
5
" R

.C
.P

.)

GRAVEL

L
IN

E
D

LINED

3
0

.3
7

'

1
9

'
2

4
'

4
0

'
2
4

'
4

0
'

2
4

'
4

0
'

2
4

'
4
3

'
2
4

'
4
3

'
2
4

'
4
0

'
2
4

'
4
0

'
2
4

'
4
0

'
2
4

'
4
0

'
2
4

'
4
0

'
2
1

'
3
0

'

30'
30'

5
5

.3
3

'

5
'

2
6

.4
8

'

2
8

.8
9

'

1
8

.1
8

'

18'

30'

10.5' 10'

1
8
'

3
0
'

24' 40'40'24' 24'
40'

40'24' 18'24'

3
0

'

5'

3
0

'
1
5

'
1
8

'
8
'

1
0

8
.8

'
7
4

.5
'

3
9

'
2
4

'

1
8

'
3
0

'

24' 40'40'30'24' 40'18'

30' 12' 146'
30'

2
9

.5
7

'

1
0

.5
5

'

9
.0

7
'

10'

9'

D

Y
H

D

Y
H

DYH

D Y

H

W
V

W
V

W
V

W
V

WV

WV

S
J

S
J

C
J

S
J

SJ

SJ

CJ CJ CJ CJ CJ

SJ

SJ

CJ

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

C
J

SJ

SJ

SJ

SJ

SJ

SJ

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

CJ CJ CJ CJ
SJSJ SJ SJ SJ

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

S
J

7
2
5

 S
T

A
L
L
S

4
.3

3
 S

T
A

L
L
S

/ 
1
, 0

0
0

 S
F

.

U
N

IV
E

R
S

I T
Y

 C
I T

Y
, 
M

IS
S

O
U

R
I

F
F

E
 =

 5
9
3
.0

0

30.13'

20' 12'7'

60.34'

4
'

39.46'

6
3

.7
1

'

3
5

.0
0

'

1
0

' (
T

Y
P

.)
1

0
' (

T
Y

P
.)

1
0

' (
T

Y
P

.)

1
0

' (
T

Y
P

.)

1
0

'

5
'

5
'

6
.0

2
'

WV

WV

35.33'

2
6

.4
4

'

35.33'

C
.O

.

C
.O

.
C

.O
.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.
C

.O
.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

MC-3500 (32) ISOLATOR ROW

MC-3500 (32) NON-ISOLATOR ROW

C
.O

.

E
X

. 
S

.S
. 
M

.H
.

R
IM

=
5

9
1

.5
9

-1
0

.0
0

%
%

%
-3

.4
1

%
%

%

-1
0

.6
3

%
%

%

6
0

 L
F

 1
2

" 
H

D
P

E
 @

 2
.9

9
%

%
%

3
3

 L
F

 1
8

" 
H

D
P

E
 @

 3
.7

6
%

%
%

8
 L

F
 1

8
" 

P
.P

. 
@

 2
.4

1
%

%
%

5
7

 L
F

 2
4

" 
P

.P
. 
@

 0
.8

7
%

%
%

4
6
 L

F
 3

0
" 

P
.P

.

P
.P

. @
 3

.1
4%

%
%

63
 L

F 3
0"

P
.P

.  
@

 1
.1

7
%

%
%

7
7
 L

F
 3

0
"

3
2

 L
F

 1
2

" 
H

D
P

E
 @

 1
.0

5
%

%
%

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
R

IM
=

5
8

5
.9

3
1

1
5

2
G

IW
/S

I
T

O
P

 O
F

 G
R

A
T

E
=

5
8

3
.3

7
1

2
1

2
G

IW
/S

I
T

O
P

 O
F

 G
R

A
T

E
=

5
8

4
.2

8
1

0
1

H
E

A
D

W
A

L
L

1
0

0

H
E

A
D

W
A

L
L

1
2

0
H

E
A

D
W

A
L

L
R

IM
=

5
7

7
.2

1
1

1
4

H
E

A
D

W
A

L
L

R
IM

=
5

7
7

.2
1

1
4

1

1
4

3
E

X
. 
M

A
N

H
O

L
E

R
IM

=
5

8
4

.0
9

1
2

2

2
0

1
 L

F
 8

" 
P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0

%
%

%

C
.O

.

C
.O

.
C

.O
.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.
C

.O
.

C
.O

.

C
.O

.

S

S

SS
S

S

S

S

2
1
M

S
D

-0
0

2
7
2

3
0

2
2

6

1
8

4
3

1
73

0

3
2

2
2

2
2

1
0

F
F

=
5

8
0
.0

0

566.5

2
1

B

C

D

E

F

H

I

J

K
L

1
8

"P
IP

E

24"RCP

2
4
"R

C
P

6"PIPE

15"PIPE

6
"P

IP
E

6
"P

IP
E

15"PIPE

6
"P

IP
E

15"PIPE

1
8
"P

IP
E

12"RCP

1
8
"R

C
P

1
5
"R

C
P

MEDIAN

C
O

N
C

. 
D

R
IV

E

W
A

L
K

 (
T

Y
P

.)

B
I 
S

T
A

T
E

 D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

G
E

N
C

Y

15" N12 HDPE

D

E

8
"G

a
s

6
0
"C

-L
IN

K

OLIVE (V.W.) BLVD.

IN
T

E
R

S
T

A
T

E
 1

7
0

W
O

O
D

S
O

N
 R

D
.

11

2
2

22

1
1

1

1 2

2

F
L

=
5

6
4

.0
0

T
O

P
=

5
6

8
.5

0

C
L

E
A

N
O

U
T

F
L

=
5

6
4

.0
0

T
O

P
=

5
6

8
.5

0

C
L

E
A

N
O

U
T

L
O

T
 B

1
5

0
0

 A
c
r e

s
±

6
5

, 3
2
1

 F
t.

L
O

T
 A

1
.4

1
4
 A

c
re

s
±

6
1

, 5
8
1

 S
q

. 
F

t.

9

1
2

1
4

1
3

1
5

33

25

20

C
O

M
M

O
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

0
.7

8
3
 A

c
re

s
±

3
4

, 1
1
7

 S
q

. 
F

t.

L
O

T
 C

7
.5

7
1

 A
c
re

s
±

3
2

9
,8

1
3

 S
q

. 
F

t.

0
.3

1
5
 A

c
re

s
±

1
3

, 7
0
4

 S
q

. 
F

t.

(P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
A

Y
O

U
T

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 D

E
C

K
 I
S

 C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L
, 
P

E
N

D
I N

G
 G

A
R

A
G

E
 D

E
S

IG
N

)

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 T
O

 M
E

E
T

 C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 C

IT
Y

 C
O

D
E

 (
+

/-
 4

7
2
 S

T
A

L
L

S
 M

IN
IM

U
M

)

A
N

C
H

O
R

 B

+
/-

 4
,8

9
0

 S
Q

. 
F

T
.

B
L
D

G
 E

S
0

0
° 1

4
' 5

9
"W

 1
0

0
.0

0
'

F1

MH: 35

F4

MH: 35

F4

MH: 35

WP1

MH: 15

F2

MH: 35

F4

MH: 35MH: 35

F4

F2

MH: 35

F2

MH: 35F2

MH: 35

F3

MH: 35

F3

MH: 35

F3

MH: 35

F4

MH: 35

F4

MH: 35

F3

MH: 35

F3

MH: 35

F2

MH: 35

1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.9 3.8 2.6 1.8 1.5

1.8 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1

1.6 1.5 1.7 2.1 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.9 2.3 2.0 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.5

1.6 1.4 1.7 2.2 2.4 1.9 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.2 1.4 1.4 1.6 1.8

1.7 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.9

1.7 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.8 2.3 2.0 2.6

1.7 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.4 2.0 2.6 2.5 3.1

1.8 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.5 2.0 2.3 2.0 2.5

2.0 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9

2.4 1.5 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.0 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.9

3.0 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 1.5

3.4 2.0 1.7 1.7 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.1 1.2 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.6 1.7 1.9 2.2 2.3 1.0

4.3 2.8 1.9 2.1 2.2 1.8 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 1.3 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.0 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.4 1.7 2.0 2.0 2.2

4.4 3.3 2.0 2.3 2.6 1.9 1.5 1.3 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.5 1.8 2.4 2.1 1.6 1.4

3.8 2.3 1.7 1.9 2.0 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.3 1.8

3.1 1.7 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.0 1.2 1.7 2.3 2.5 2.7 2.4

1.9 1.8 2.0 2.0

1.5 1.7 1.9

0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7

0.9 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 0.8 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.8 2.0 2.1 2.6 2.9 2.2 1.7 1.5 1.1 0.8

1.2 1.1 1.3 1.5 1.7 1.9 1.8 1.6 1.4 1.1 1.4 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.8 1.8 2.2 2.4 1.8 1.5 1.3 0.9 0.7

1.6 1.3 1.5 1.7 2.0 2.6 2.4 1.8 1.5 1.1 1.7 2.1 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.6 1.9 2.2 2.3 1.9 1.5 1.1 0.8 0.6

2.5 1.4 1.5 1.8 2.2 2.8 2.5 1.9 1.5 1.2 2.0 2.6 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.5 1.5 1.3 1.2 0.9 0.7 0.5

2.5 1.4 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.7 1.5 1.2 1.9 2.3 2.0 1.8 1.6 1.5 1.3 1.2 1.1 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7

1.7 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8 1.7 1.6 1.4 1.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.4 1.7

1.3 1.2 1.4 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.9 2.1 2.0 1.9 1.7 1.4 3.4

1.3 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.3 1.3 1.1 2.0 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.6 1.3 5.1

1.2 1.1 1.3 1.4 1.4 1.4 1.5 1.4 1.3 1.1 2.0 2.3 2.1 1.8 1.5 1.2 6.2

1.2 1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.5 1.2 2.2 2.7 2.2 2.0 1.5 1.1 4.6

1.3 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.4 2.8 2.5 2.3 1.9 1.7 2.3 2.8 2.8 2.2 2.0 1.8 1.6 3.2

1.5 1.5 1.8 2.0 2.4 3.0 2.7 2.4 2.3 2.1 2.2 2.4 2.4 2.2 2.0 1.9 1.8 1.8 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.6 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.6 1.7

2.1 2.4 3.1 3.7 3.4 3.0 3.0 2.8 2.3 2.2 2.1 2.1 2.0 2.0 2.1 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.9 3.0 2.4 2.2 1.9 1.5

1.8 1.7 1.8 2.0 2.3 2.9 3.3 3.6 4.3 4.3 3.5 3.0 2.5 1.8

1.5 1.4

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.6 0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1

0.4 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.5 0.6 0.7 0.8

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.1

0.9 1.1 1.4 1.5

1.2 1.6 1.9 2.1

1.5 2.3 2.6 2.9

1.7 2.9 3.1 3.0

1.8 3.3 3.3 2.7

1.8 3.2 3.2 2.8

1.7 2.9 3.2 3.2

1.5 2.3 2.6 2.9

1.2 1.7 2.0 2.3

1.0 1.3 1.6 1.8

0.9 1.1 1.3 1.5

0.7 0.9 1.1 1.3

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.5

0.7 0.8 1.0 1.3 1.7

0.9 1.1 1.4 1.8

0.9 1.3 1.6 1.9 2.1

1.0 1.5 2.0 2.4 2.6 1.7 0.7 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.7 2.3 3.0 3.1 3.3 3.2 3.1 2.5 2.0 1.6 1.3 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.6 2.0 2.7 3.2 3.4 3.3 3.1 2.3 1.7 1.2 0.8

1.1 1.9 2.7 3.0 3.2 2.7 1.5 0.8 0.9 1.2 1.7 2.3 2.9 2.9 2.8 3.1 3.0 2.4 1.9 1.5 1.2 1.0 0.9 1.0 1.2 1.6 2.1 2.7 2.8 2.5 2.5 2.8 2.4 2.0 1.4 1.0

1.9 3.1 3.1 3.0 4.0

1.8 3.3 3.3 2.8

1.6 2.9 3.4 3.1

1.4 2.4 3.3 3.1 3.2

1.2 1.9 2.4 2.6 2.7

1.5 1.8 2.0 2.2

1.2 1.5 1.7 1.9

1.2 1.4 1.6 1.8

1.1 1.4 1.6 1.8

1.1 1.5 1.8 2.1

1.2 1.8 2.2 2.6

1.4 2.2 2.9 3.1

1.4 2.5 3.6 3.4

1.4 2.7 3.8 3.5

1.4 2.7 3.7 3.4

1.3 2.3 3.4 3.3

1.2 1.9 2.6 2.8

Luminaire Schedule

Symbol Qty Label Arrangement Lum. Watts Total Watts LLF Description

1 F1 BACK-BACK 172 344 0.900

1 WP1 SINGLE 113 113 0.912 GWC-AF-02-LED-E1-SL3

PRV-XL-PA3A-740-U-5WQ - TWIN
5 F2 SINGLE 303 1515 0.900 PRV-XL-PA4B-740-U-T4W-HSS

5 F3 SINGLE 303 1515 0.900 PRV-XL-PA4B-740-U-T3

6 F4 SINGLE 303 1818 0.900 PRV-XL-PA4B-740-U-5WQ 

Calculation Summary

Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min

LOTS E & F Illuminance Fc 1.75 6.2 0.4 4.38 15.50
PARKING DECK Illuminance Fc 1.47 4.4 0.7 2.10 6.29

SHARED DRIVES Illuminance Fc 1.99 4.0 0.5 3.98 8.00

SPILL LIGHT Illuminance Fc 0.09 0.6 0.0 N.A. N.A.



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:   REZ 22-11 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:   3 
 
Applicant: U. City, LLC 
 
Location: Lot C and Common Ground 1, Market at Olive North (IV) – 

Near 8601 Olive Blvd 
 
Request: Zoning Map Amendment from Planned Development 

Commercial District (PD-C) and Single-Family Residential 
District (SR), to Planned Development Commercial District 
(PD-C) and to further consider approval of a Preliminary 
Site Development Plan  

 
Existing Zoning: Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C) and 

Single-Family Residential District (SR)  
Proposed Zoning:   Planned Development Commercial District (PD-C) 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant land; single-family homes to be demolished 
Proposed Land Use: Large retail development 
 
Surrounding Zoning: 
North:     IC – Industrial Commercial   
East: SR – Single-Family Residential / 

GC – General Commercial District 
South:     PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 
West:     PD-C – Planned Development Commercial District 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[ X ] Yes [  ] No  [  ] No reference 
 
PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
[  ] Approval  [ X ] Approval with Conditions in Resolution [  ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Map Amendment Application  
B. Preliminary Site Development Plan 
C. Building Elevations 



REZ 22-11   
Page 2 of 7 

 
Applicant’s Request 
The Applicant, U. City, LLC, is requesting that the subject property be rezoned from Planned 
Development Commercial District (PD-C) and Single-family Residential District (SR) to Planned 
Development Commercial District (PD-C), and to further consider approval of a Preliminary Site 
Development Plan. 
 
The proposed rezoning and preliminary site development plan is for Lot C of Market at Olive 
Phase IV, a 7.5-acre site which includes a 148,095-square foot retail store, as well as Common 
Ground 1 of Market at Olive Phase IV (0.3 acres). The retail building will be served by a two-
level parking deck, which is described in more detail below in the analysis section of this report. 
 
Background 
The Market at Olive development plans have evolved over the approximately three and a half 
years since the Redevelopment Plan was adopted by the City Council in June 2019. 
Redevelopment Area 1 (RPA1), synonymous with the “Market at Olive” development, is the 
commercial redevelopment at Olive Boulevard and I-170. In the most recent and final iterations, 
Market at Olive encompasses four phases as described in the below list. 

• Phase I: the Costco site north of Olive Blvd. (Status: Construction Complete) 
• Phase II: the area south of Olive Blvd, west of McKnight Rd and includes four lots with 

retail/restaurant buildings fronting Olive Blvd. (Status: Rezoning & Final Development 
Plan Approved) 

• Phase III: the area at the southeast corner of Olive Blvd and I-170, which has yet to be 
presented to the Plan Commission, but is expected to include a grocery store with two 
smaller restaurant/retail buildings fronting Olive Blvd. (Status: Not Yet Submitted) 

• Phase IV: the area at the northwest corner of Olive Blvd and Woodson Rd, which 
contains three lots:  

o Lot A: 4,930 square-foot fast-food restaurant with drive-thru (Status: Rezoning 
and Final Development Plan Approved)  

o Lot B: 7,700 square-foot multi-tenant retail building with drive-thru (Status: 
Rezoning Approved, Final Development Plan Proposed) 

o Lot C: subject property, proposed 148,095-square foot retail store (Status: 
Rezoning and Preliminary Site Development Plan Proposed) 

 
In 2020, prior to the sale of the Market at Olive development area, Novus Companies proposed 
to rezone the areas within Redevelopment Project Area 1 now referred to as Phase II, Phase III, 
and Phase IV of Market at Olive to Planned Development Commercial (PD-C). As part of this 
proposal for Phases II through IV, Novus had proposed to develop the subject property (Phase 
IV Lot C) into a retail building with 86,000 square feet, divided into three tenant spaces. The 
Plan Commission recommended approval of the Novus proposal on December 23, 2020, but 
the City Council decided not to take action on the rezoning until Novus had gained control of the 
property. No further action was taken on the rezoning proposal for the site and the Market at 
Olive development area was sold in 2021 to the current development group. 
 
The proposed development of Lot C is consistent with the intent of the overall Market at Olive 
development plan, but differs from what was originally proposed on this site in 2020. 
 
Existing Property 
The existing property where the retail store is proposed is just north of Olive Boulevard, with 
frontage along Woodson Road, and is known as Lot C of Market at Olive Phase IV. Demolition 
of the remaining single-family homes that were acquired for the proposed development is 
currently underway at the time of writing. To the south of the subject site and with direct frontage 



REZ 22-11   
Page 3 of 7 

 
on Olive Blvd, are the two smaller commercial lots in Phase IV, one of which will be developed 
into a drive-thru fast-food restaurant (Lot A), and the other into a multi-tenant retail building with 
drive-thru (Lot B).  
 
The existing site slopes from north to south, and similarly to the Costco site, the three Phase IV 
sites will be elevated from the street level and reinforced with a retaining wall. Lot C is proposed 
to be further elevated above Lots A and B. The elevation of the commercial developments 
generally allows for level access to the building from the parking areas, which is described in 
detail in the analysis section of this report.  
 
Analysis 
Land Use and Zoning 
The purpose of “PD”, Planned Development Districts, as set forth in Section 400.720 of the 
Zoning Code, is to allow for flexibility to create developments that better adapt to site conditions 
and the relation to surrounding properties otherwise not possible under traditional district 
regulations, thus resulting in developments that are more compatible and consistent with 
surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The proposed use as retail store providing for the sale of consumer goods normally found in a 
shopping center, is a permitted use within General Commercial (GC) district and is therefore an 
appropriate use in the PD-C district. The subject site is designated as single-family and 
commercial per Map 23 of the 2005 Comprehensive Plan. Below is a summary of the 
surrounding land uses and zoning districts, as well as “Proposed Land Use” (PLU) designations 
per Map 23 of the 2005 Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 Land Use Zoning PLU Designations  

West Regional commercial (Costco) PD-C Institution; Industrial/Utility; and Mixed-
Use/Transit Oriented Development 

East Single-family homes, retail/restaurant 
on Olive Blvd  

SR, GC Single-Family and Commercial 

North Equipment supply company (Wiese 
USA) 

IC Industrial/Utility 

South Retail and fast-food restaurants with 
drive-thrus 

PD-C Commercial, Institution, Mixed-
Use/Transit Oriented Development 

 
Density & Dimensional Regulations  
Density and dimensional regulations for PD-C Planned Development Commercial developments 
are set forth in Section 400.780 of the Zoning Code, which also states that the approval of a 
development plan may provide for exceptions from the regulations associated traditional zoning 
districts as may be necessary to achieve the objectives of the proposed development.  
The PD-C District establishes the following dimensional regulations: 

1. Site coverage – Total site coverage in PD-C districts is limited to 70% but may be 
allowed to increase to 90% if the development plan can demonstrate compliance with 
four or more of the performance criteria detailed in §400.780(D)(2). The applicant 
proposes site coverage of 88.99% and has demonstrated compliance with 6 out of the 
11 criteria (bolded below, with descriptions in blue of how the design meets the criteria). 

a. Incorporate storm drainage detention/retention facilities as a site amenity 



REZ 22-11   
Page 4 of 7 

 
(bioretention basins will be planted and provide visual interest along Woodson) 

b. Install storm drainage detention facilities underground (two underground 
basins are provided—one at the northwest corner of the site near the loading 
area, and one at the southeast corner of the site underneath the parking deck) 

c. Resolution or mitigation of existing off-site storm drainage problems (e.g., 
drainage channel erosion) (due to downstream problems, the detention on this 
site is designed as if the current site is all grass; proposed runoff rates will be 
less than an all-grass site and significantly less than the existing conditions) 

d. Increasing parking lot landscaping by fifty percent (50%) more than otherwise 
required 

e. Submitting for approval developments on tracts that are five (5) or more 
acres in size (site is greater than 5 acres) 

f. Design of principal access to the development tract at an approved 
location that allows for shared access by an adjacent property (main access 
drive from Olive Blvd is shared with Costco and frontage lots) 

g. Construction of separate-grade pedestrian and bicycle paths 
h. Providing for screened loading and unloading areas (loading dock is in a 

protected area, only visible from the back of the existing property to the north and 
the back of the Costco building) 

i. Providing for mixed-use developments that include community facilities that 
further the goals, objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 

j. Demonstration of a development using innovative architectural, site planning and 
land use design and of such quality as to set an excellent example for 
subsequent development or redevelopment projects 

k. Any other performance criteria that further the goals, objectives and policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan and that, in the opinion of the Plan Commission and 
City Council, warrant the approval of development bonuses. 

2. Signage. Currently, no signage has been proposed for the site. No special exceptions or 
deviations from the signage section of the Zoning Code are requested nor 
recommended.  

3. Perimeter Buffer Requirements. Where a PD-C district abuts. a residential district, a 
minimum 50’ buffer is required between the two districts, with landscaping requirements 
in accordance with Article V, Division 6 of the Zoning Code. This requirement applies to 
the development (per code definition of “abutting”), but Woodson Road lies between the 
proposed commercial and the existing residential, separating the two districts by about 
60’. Landscaping requirements for buffers include a minimum 10’-wide landscaped area 
with at least one evergreen tree per 20’ of lineal feet of common property line, a mix of 
canopy trees and shrubs, and a site-proof fence at the property line. Given constraints at 
the northeast corner of the site, the fence requirement shall be waived, as long as the 
applicant can demonstrate effective screening with trees and shrubs along the eastern 
property line. 

 
Additional Density & Dimensional Regulations 
The PD-C District does not establish its own regulations for all density and dimensional 
characteristics, but simply states that approval of the development plan may provide for such 
exceptions from the regulations associated with traditional zoning districts as may be necessary 



REZ 22-11   
Page 5 of 7 

 
to achieve the objectives of the proposed development. The regulations set forth in General 
Commercial (GC), the associated traditional zoning district for the subject development, can be 
used as a frame of reference to evaluate the proposed design.  

1. Building Height. In the GC District, principal buildings are generally not to exceed 35’. 
Certain building elements are exempted from this maximum height, such as chimneys, 
ornamental towers, and mechanical equipment which are usually required to be placed 
above the roof level. The proposed retail store will have a general height of 26’ from the 
finished floor of the building, with periodic decorative parapets to create visual interest 
reaching 32’, and one ornamental tower at the southwest corner reaching 50’. The 
proposed building heights comply. 
However, given the existing slope of the site and the need for the main level parking to 
be at the same elevation as the building entrance, the experience of the building height 
is quite different at various points on the site. On the north and east sides of the building, 
the foundation walls will be extended/exposed. Standing on the sidewalk at the northeast 
corner of the site, the experience of the building height will be more like 49’ feet, due to 
the exposed/extended foundation walls. Landscape screening and building design 
elements along the north and east sides of the site shall be utilized to mitigate the visual 
impact of the perceived building height from the northeast corner. The proposed building 
elevations include some design elements (windows, decorative panels, and metal 
awnings) at this corner to reduce the perceived scale of the building and to vary the 
design of the façade.   

2. Building Setbacks. There are two minimum building setback requirements in the GC 
District—right-of-way setback and property line setbacks. The proposed building location 
complies with both setback regulations. 

 
Pedestrian Access 
The topography of the existing site and the proposed grading of the site create limitations on 
providing accessible pedestrian paths which comply with ADA requirements. Staff is continuing 
to work with the applicant to find feasible opportunities to improve pedestrian safety and access 
within the site and to the site from public sidewalks and from other establishments in the Market 
at Olive development.  

- Staff believes the proposed development could significantly increase pedestrian activity 
to the site, especially from the neighborhoods to the east and northeast. Without safe 
pedestrian facilities, such as a crosswalk and sidewalks on the east side on Woodson, it 
is likely that many pedestrians will unsafely shortcut by crossing Woodson farther north. 
Staff urges the applicant to work with both the city and county to explore feasible 
improvements to ensure pedestrian safety and access.  

- The proposed design provides sidewalk along the west side of Woodson. Streetlights 
and street trees along this portion of the public sidewalk are recommended to improve 
pedestrian security. 

- The internal pedestrian paths provided for Lot C do not connect in the southwest portion 
of the site. The applicant shall work with city staff to find solutions to create a continuous 
pedestrian path around the perimeter of the parking area.  

Building Access 
The development will also be required to meet the bicycle parking requirements per §400.2150. 
Building Design 
As the applicant further develops the building and site design, the Olive Boulevard Design 



REZ 22-11   
Page 6 of 7 

 
Guidelines shall be reviewed and addressed. 
Parking 
The proposed development will feature two levels of parking. The main-level parking will be at 
the same elevation as the entrance to the retail store and will be accessed directly from 
Woodson Road and from the shared drive adjacent to Costco. The lower-level parking will be 
directly below the main-level and will be accessed from the new drive to the south of this parcel. 
Customers utilizing lower-level parking will enter the store via a lower-level lobby and elevator 
area. 
Per Ordinance No. 7191, adopted September 12, 2022, the parking requirements for large retail 
stores over 45,000 square feet with warehouse/distribution space are calculated differently than 
smaller retail stores. The proposed development meets the minimum parking requirements, 
providing 498 spaces.  
Vehicular Access/Circulation 
Four access points to the site are proposed. The main-level parking area will be accessed 
directly from Woodson Road, and from the shared Costco drive on the west side of the site. 
There will be two access points to the lower-level parking area, both from the shared access 
drive to the south of the site. The south access drive, which also serves Lots A and B, limits 
traffic coming from Woodson to only left turns into the site. It is unclear whether the site’s direct 
access point on Woodson allows left turns. 
A traffic study was conducted for the entire Market at Olive development in 2020, 
recommending improvements to Olive Boulevard which have since been completed. However, 
the proposed development on Lot C has changed significantly since the traffic study was 
conducted, nor did the study analyze impacts to Woodson Road at Alfred Avenue (which will 
become a commercial access drive for trucks and service vehicles). Staff believes further study 
is required from the applicant to assess the impacts to Woodson Road based on the new 
design.  
Landscaping Plan 
A landscaping plan was not provided with the preliminary development plan submittal. The 
applicant will be required to submit a plan meeting the city’s landscaping standards along with a 
future Final Development Plan submittal.  
Photometric Plan 
A photometric plan was not provided with the preliminary development plan submittal. The 
applicant will be required to submit a plan meeting the city’s lighting standards along with a 
future Final Development Plan submittal.  
Comprehensive Plan 
It is staff’s opinion that the proposed development is consistent with the goals and objectives of 
the University City Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005. Applicable sections from the Plan 
Update that support this opinion include: 

Chapter 3, of the Comprehensive Plan Update of 2005, under Commercial, as a general policy, 
states, “The City will support the redevelopment of Olive Boulevard for commercial and mixed 
uses.” 
 
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
Based on this report’s analysis Staff recommends approval of the Applicant’s proposed Map 
Amendment and Preliminary Site Development Plan with the following conditions: 



REZ 22-11   
Page 7 of 7 

 
 

1. The use associated with this development shall be for a regional retail store, with 
approximately 148,095-square feet with a two-level parking deck.  

2. The applicant shall work with city staff to study solutions to improve pedestrian access 
both within and to the site, and provide or make future accommodations for 
improvements such as:  

a. Pedestrian lighting for sidewalk along the west side of Woodson Road.  
b. Crosswalk on Woodson Road near the northeast corner of the subject property. 
c. Sidewalk along the east side of Woodson Road.  
d. Sidewalk along the west and south sides of the parking area so that pedestrian 

access is continuous around the perimeter of the parking area. 
e. To accommodate the above improvements, the applicant shall work with city staff 

to find opportunities to adjust other standards in the Zoning Code, which shall be 
presented to the Plan Commission in the Final Development Plan. 

3. Further analysis of the proposed development’s impact to Woodson Road, given the 
changes proposed since the 2020 traffic impact study, as discussed in the report above. 

4. As part of the Final Development submittal, the below items shall be provided: 
a. Response to condition #2. 
b. Revised building elevations which fully illustrate the exposed foundation walls 

visible on the north and east sides of the building in relation to the grade at the 
right-of-way.  

c. Bicycle parking spaces as required per § 400.2145 shall be provided as part of 
the Final Development submittal. 

d. A detailed landscape plan demonstrating compliance with the §400.1190(A)(1) 
and §400.2040. The requirement for a fence on the east property line is waived.  

e. A detailed photometric meeting the city’s lighting standards shall be provided 
along with the Final Development Plan submittal. 

5. The buildings and property shall be developed, constructed, and maintained in 
compliance with the plans submitted and attached. The footprint and general layout are 
subject to the plans dated November 21, 2022. 

6. A detailed construction traffic control and parking plan should be submitted to the 
Director of Planning & Development for approval. Said plan shall set forth details 
pertaining to worker and resident parking during all phases of the proposed construction. 
It shall further detail solutions to public property maintenance issues such as street 
cleaning and traffic diversion. Said plan shall be finalized prior to the issuance of a 
building permit. It shall be the applicant’s responsibility to obtain those approvals in 
written form in a timely manner prior to issuance of the building permit. 





Market at Olive North- Lot C and Common Ground 1 Zoning Amendment 

5. Describe proposed construction 

The proposed building is a +/- 148,095 square foot building with an attached two-level parking deck. The 
upper level of the parking deck will be at the same elevation as the building finish floor level. Vehicular 
traffic will get to this level directly from Woodson or from the shared drive adjacent to Costco. 

The lower-level parking will have access to a lower-level lobby and elevator area. Vehicular traffic can 
enter the lower parking level from the new drive to the south of this parcel.  

Additional surface parking will be provided to the west of the building. Exact parking numbers will 
depend on the final garage design, but a minimum of 498 spaces will be provided in accordance with the 
city code per the text amendment recently passed. 

The building will height will generally be 26’ above finish floor, with a higher tower element at the 
southwest corner. Due to the varied topography of the site, the east and north side of the building will 
have exposed/extended foundation walls. 

The building will have ADA sidewalk access from Woodson Rd. 

Stormwater management will be provided by an underground storage system below the garage lower 
level, a bioretention basin and a Stormtech system. 

 

Site Coverage 

The proposed site coverage is 88.99%. City code allows for up to 90% coverage if at least four (4) of the 
performance criteria are met. This site meets the following eight (8) criteria: 

a. Incorporate storm drainage detention/retention facilities as a site amenity; The bioretention basin will 
be planted and will provide visual interest along Woodson 

b. Install storm drainage detention facilities underground; Two underground basin s are provided 

c. Resolution or mitigation of existing off-site storm drainage problems (e.g., drainage channel erosion); 
Due to downstream problems, the detention on this site is designed as if the current site is all grass. 
Proposed runoff rates will be less than an all grass site and significantly less than the actual existing 
conditions. 

e. Submitting for approval developments on tracts that are five (5) or more acres in size; Site is more 
than 5 acres 

f. Design of principal access to the development tract at an approved location that allows for shared 
access by an adjacent property; Main access drive off of Olive is shared with Costco and frontage lots 

h. Providing for screened loading and unloading areas; Loading dock is in a protected area, only visible 
from the back of the existing property to the north and the back of the Costco building. 



j. Demonstration of a development using innovative architectural, site planning and land use design and 
of such quality as to set an excellent example for subsequent development or redevelopment projects; 
Innovative architectural and site design are providing the best use of the site 

k. Any other performance criteria that further the goals, objectives and policies of the Comprehensive 
Plan and that, in the opinion of the Plan Commission and City Council, warrant the approval of 
development bonuses. This development will provide significant revenues in accordance with 
comprehensive plan 



TITLE SHEET

C1.0

GENERAL NOTES:

1) Basis of Bearings Missouri State Plane Grid North

C1.0 TITLE SHEET
C2.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS/DEMOLITION PLAN
C3.0 SITE PLAN
C4.0 SITE & GRADING PLAN
C5.0 SITE UTILITY PLAN

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

C 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
#

1

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

17
76

0\
61

93
-a

nc
ho

r B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

1.
0 

TI
TL

E 
SH

EE
T 

 P
LO

TT
ED

:  
N

ov
 2

1,
  2

02
2 

- 3
:3

0p
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/21/22



WOODSON RD.

O
LIVE (V.W

.) BLVD
.

LOT A AND B AND COMMON
GROUND 2 NOT INCLUDED
IN THIS SUBMITTAL.
(SUBMITTED PREVIOUSLY) LOT C

LOT B

LOT A

COMMON GROUND 2

C
O

M
M

O
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 1

EXISTING
CONDITIONS/

DEMOLITION PLAN

C2.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

C 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
#

1

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

17
76

0\
61

93
-a

nc
ho

r B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

2.
0 

EX
 C

O
N

D
 A

N
D

 D
EM

O
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 2
1,

  2
02

2 
- 3

:3
0p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/21/22



725 STALLS
4.33 STALLS/ 1,000 SF.

UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
FFE = 593.00

21MSD-00272

41

8

WOODSON RD.

ANCHOR B
MAIN LEVEL 148,095 SQ. FT.
F.F.=595.00
LOWER LEVEL 1,097 SQ. FT.
LOWER FLOOR=584.00
PARKING TO MEET CURRENT CITY
CODE (498 STALLS MINIMUM)
(PARKING LAYOUT SHOWN ON
PARKING DECK IS CONCEPTUAL,
PENDING GARAGE DESIGN)

HOLD FOR
GENERATOR

R
AM

P

LOT C

COMMON GROUND 2

C
O

M
M

O
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 1

SITE PLAN

C3.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

C 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
#

1

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

17
76

0\
61

93
-a

nc
ho

r B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

3.
0 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 2
1,

  2
02

2 
- 3

:3
1p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/21/22



725 STALLS
4.33 STALLS/ 1,000 SF.

UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
FFE = 593.00

21MSD-00272

41

WOODSON RD.

ANCHOR B
MAIN LEVEL 148,095 SQ. FT.
F.F.=595.00
LOWER LEVEL 1,097 SQ. FT.
LOWER FLOOR=584.00

HOLD FOR
GENERATOR

R
AM

P

LOT C

COMMON GROUND 2

C
O

M
M

O
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 1

SITE &
GRADING PLAN

C4.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

C 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
#

1

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

17
76

0\
61

93
-a

nc
ho

r B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

4.
0 

G
R

AD
IN

G
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

N
ov

 2
1,

  2
02

2 
- 3

:3
1p

m
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 a

lis
on

.g
au

ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/21/22



725 STALLS
4.33 STALLS/ 1,000 SF.

UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
FFE = 593.00

21MSD-00272

21

36

36

36

36

30

30

19

17

14

6

12

41

8

WOODSON RD.

ANCHOR B
MAIN LEVEL 148,095 SQ. FT.
F.F.=595.00
LOWER LEVEL 1,097 SQ. FT.
LOWER FLOOR=584.00
PARKING TO MEET CURRENT CITY
CODE (498 STALLS MINIMUM)
(PARKING LAYOUT SHOWN ON
PARKING DECK IS CONCEPTUAL,
PENDING GARAGE DESIGN)

HOLD FOR
GENERATOR

R
AM

P

LOT C

COMMON GROUND 2

C
O

M
M

O
N

 G
R

O
U

N
D

 1

SITE UTILITY
PLAN

C5.0

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y,
 M

IS
SO

U
R

I

M
AR

KE
T 

AT
 O

LI
VE

 N
OR

TH
-

LO
T 

C 
AN

D 
CO

M
M

ON
 G

RO
UN

D 
#

1

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

AN
 F

O
R

:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 C
:\U

se
rs

\A
LI

SO
N

~1
.G

AU
\A

pp
D

at
a\

Lo
ca

l\T
em

p\
Ac

Pu
bl

is
h_

17
76

0\
61

93
-a

nc
ho

r B
 e

nt
itl

em
en

ts
.d

w
g 

 L
AY

O
U

T:
 C

5.
0 

U
TI

LI
TY

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
N

ov
 2

1,
  2

02
2 

- 3
:3

1p
m

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 a
lis

on
.g

au
ch

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

11/21/22



MO_University City
2022_November_18

Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

32
’ -

 0
”

26
’ -

 0
”

26
’ -

 0
”

22
’ -

 0
”

14
’ -

 0
”

EL= 32’-0”
EL= 26’-0”

EL= 50’-0”

EL= 32’-0”

EL= 22’-0”

EL= 50’-0”

EL= 26’-0”

alison.gauch
Text Box
Note: These elevations are intended to show general shape of building above finish floor. They do not reflect actual building colors, or site grading and exposed/extended foundation walls.

alison.gauch
Text Box
(Olive)

alison.gauch
Text Box
(Alfred Dr/Common Ground/North)



MO_Overland
2022_June_21

Left Elevation

Right Elevation

32
’ -

 0
”

26
’ -

 0
”

14
’ -

 0
”

14
’ -

 0
”

14
’ -

 0
”

EL= 26’-0”
EL= 22’-0”

EL= 50’-0”

EL= 26’-0”

EL= 50’-0”

EL= 26’-0”

alison.gauch
Text Box
Note: These elevations are intended to show general shape of building above finish floor. They do not reflect actual building colors, or site grading and exposed/extended foundation walls.

alison.gauch
Text Box
(Costco)

alison.gauch
Text Box
(Woodson)



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:  December 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:  CUP 22-13 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  1 
 
Applicant: Washington University – St. Louis 
 
Request: Allow “Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities” 

in the University City Civic Complex Historic District on lots less than 
0.45-acre in area. 

 
* This item was originally scheduled for a public hearing at this Plan Commission meeting. At 

the request of the Applicant, this petition is before the Commission this evening for an informal 
review in order to gather additional input from the Commission and community. 

 
Washington University – St. Louis is interested in purchasing the buildings at 6900 Washington 
Avenue and 6901 Delmar Boulevard. To accommodate the request, a Text Amendment to the 
Zoning Ordinance “PA” District was approved by the Plan Commission on September 28, 2022; it 
has yet to be discussed at the City Council, pending additional details concerning the Conditional 
Use Permit application. See details below.  
The Applicant has provided an Attachment A with detailed information regarding the proposal. 
Two of the primary concerns with the request are parking and traffic circulation. The Applicant 
plans to continue with the Conditional Use Permit process at a later Plan Commission meeting, at 
which time notice of the meeting will be sent to residents again. 
 
The Plan Commission approved the following Text Amendment on September 28, 2022: 

Amend §400.690 Conditional Uses: 

12. “Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities.” provided that such 
buildings shall be located upon sites containing two and one-half (2½) or more acres.” 

Amend Section §400.700 Density and Dimensional Regulations: 
A. Minimum Lot Size. 

1. Permitted and conditional uses. Lot area and lot dimensions shall be adequate to provide 
the minimum setbacks required by this Section and required parking, as established under 
Article VII "Off-Street Parking and Loading Requirements", but in no instance shall a lot be 
less than two (2) acres in area, except as provided for in paragraph (2) below, provided 
that in the University City Civic Complex Historic District, in no instance shall a lot be less 
than 0.45-acre in area. 

(Text in blue are sections that were deleted from §400.690(12) and added, respectively, to 
§400.700(A)(1) at the September 28th meeting.) 



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Attachment A

6900 Delmar Blvd. & 6901 Washington Ave. 

CUP Application



Washington University in St. Louis is under contract to purchase 
the two referenced properties.  The University was approached 
by the University United Methodist Church congregation (located 
at 6901 Washington) after their decision to consolidate and 
merge with another parish.  UUMC knew the University would 
be good stewards of their building and respect the legacy of its 
history.  

With the adjacent 6900 Delmar property currently on the 
market, the University recognized the opportunity to purchase 
both properties and locate an academic department within 
them.  Since being first approach by UUMC, the University has 
been assessing the condition of each property and test-fitting 
options for potential adaptive reuse.  While the project is 
essentially in a master planning phase and design work has not 
begun, a clear direction for the project has been established: 

• Demolition will not be sought.  The University seeks to 
preserve and enhance the defining features and historic 
character of each property, extending their life for decades 
to come.  

• The University is considering relocating a single academic 
department to these buildings.  The identified academic 
department is not pursuing growth and will benefit from 
the quality of space provided within these buildings.

• Spaces within the buildings would primarily include offices 
and seminar-style classrooms of approximately 20 
students.  A large auditorium, rental spaces, or assembly 
spaces are not being considered for either property.  

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Project Introduction



6900 Delmar Blvd. 

6901 Washington Ave. 

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Project Introduction



https://www.ucitymo.org/833/Zoning-Map

6900 Delmar Blvd. &
6901 Washington Ave

Both Zoned: PA Public Activity
but abutting some single-family residential

Single Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Public Activity

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

6900

6901

6.  Please state, as fully as possible, how each of the following standards are met or will be met by the 
proposed development or use for which this application is being made.

a) Complies with all applicable provisions of the University City Zoning Code. 

The following sections of University City’s Chapter 400 Zoning Code apply to this project:

Article IV District Regulations
Division 10 “PA” Public Activity District
• Both parcels are currently zoned PA, Public Activity.  
• The lot sizes are as follows: 

o 6900 Delmar Blvd. = 0.48 acres
o 6901 Washington Ave = Approximately 0.65 acres (Note: The University City 

website does not include lot size information for this parcel.  The acreage 
provided is based on the site survey most recently performed for the property.)

• Per Section 400.690, the proposed used is an allowable Conditional Use.  
o “Schools, private; including college or university-level facilities, providing that such 

buildings shall be located upon sites containing two and one-half (2-1/2) or more 
acres.”

o A text amendment has been proposed for the Civic Complex Historic District that 
would reduce the minimum lot size requirement for PA parcels within this district.  
The text amendment process is currently under review by the City.  

o Note: It’s worth noting that any potential buyer for these properties will need to 
pursue the same process.  These highly urban lots are far from meeting the City-
wide PA minimum lot size requirement; furthermore, the other PA lots within the 
civic complex plaza do not meet the current lot size requirements. 

• Section 400.700 Density and Dimensional Regulations
o Section A Minimum Lot Size.  This section identifies a mínimum lot size of 2 acres 

for all permitted and conditional uses.  This requirement is superseded by the 
section above and would be modified by the proposed text amendment.  

o Section B Building Setback Requirements. The existing buildings have non-
conforming setbacks.  These non-conforming setbacks will be maintained and not 
altered in any way through this project.  No new building construction is 
proposed.  

o Section C Building Height Limitations.  Elements of the existing buildings exceed 
the building height limitations.  These elements will not be altered as part of this 
project.  No new building construction is proposed.  

• Section 400.710 Other Development Standards. 
o Section B – As required in this section, a detailed landscaping plan will be 

submitted as part of the site plan review process.  



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

The following Public Activity Parcel Setbacks 
apply: 

15’-0”   Minimum Street Right-of-Way Setback
0’-0”     Property Line Setback*
35’-0” Height Restriction

*Unless abutting a residential district, in which 
case, a 25’-0” setback is required.  

*If a building is setback from the property line,
then it must be setback at least 5’-0”.

-

The 6900 Delmar building is currently compliant
with setback regulations, with the exemption of 
the height restriction.  
(The building is setback from the street right-of-
way by over 20’-0” and from the parcel to the 
west by over 20’-0”.)

The 6901 Washington Building currently has a 
myriad of non-conforming setbacks.  
• It is setback from the Street ROW by less than

12’-0” at its widest point.  
• It borders a residential property and is

currently setback from that property by 6’-6”.  
• The church exceeds the height restriction.  

Since building additions are not occurring, this
project will maintain all current non-
conformances. 

Setbacks

Per zoning 
requirements, a 
sight-proof 
screening fence will 
be provided where 
abutting residential 
properties and 
required setbacks 
cannot be achieved.



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Article V Supplementary Regulations
• All setback and lot size requirements are addressed above.  
• Accessory buildings and structures will not be introduced on this project.  
• Division 6 Landscaping and Screening Requirements 

o Section 400.1180 Planting Specifications.  Detailed landscaping information will 
be submitted as part of the Site Plan review and approval process.  In developing 
the site plan, the project team will comply with the requirements of this Division.  

o Section 400.1190 Screening Between Non-Residential and Residential Zoning 
Districts.  The western extent of the property at 6901 Washington Ave abuts a 
residential district.  Due to the close nature of the building to the property line, a 
landscape buffer is not possible.  A sight-proof screening fence, 8’-0” in height 
will be constructed.  

o Section 400.120 Screening of Building Mechanical or Electrical Equipment.  To 
the extent possible, major mechanical equipment will be located within each 
building.  Due to the unique roof structures of these buildings, rooftop 
equipment will not be used.  In the event ground-mounted equipment is 
required, it shall be screening in accordance with the provisions of this section.  

o Section 400.1210 Screening of Rubbish, Garbage and Dumpster Containers.  
Trash containers are currently located along the western edge of the shared 
parking lot between 6900 and 6901.  Due to the limited site area, they will 
remain in this location but screened from view in accordance with the 
requirements of this section.  

• Division 7 Fence Regulations
o With the exception of fences required for screening, no fences will be introduced 

on this project.  
• All other requirements of this article will be met.  

a) How the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or convenience.  

The University seeks to preserve and enhance the defining features and historic character of 
each property, extending their life for decades to come.  Their objective is stewardship of the 
properties, and their intended use will maintain the vitality of the civic complex, with occupants 
using these buildings primarily between 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday.  This 
usage pattern will contribute to the 24-hour life cycle of the civic complex but avoid 
contributing to parking challenges during evening and weekend hours.  Additionally, the surface 
parking lot that is being proposed to support this project will be made available for public use 
after-hours, assisting in relieving parking challenges during evenings and weekends, especially 
when special events are held by neighboring institutions. 



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

a) Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property. 

(See answer above.)

Additionally, the Church has facilitated several conversations with surrounding neighborhood 
groups.  Neighborhood conversations have been highly productive with several 
neighborhood suggestions already being incorporated into the site plan.  While the 
neighborhood has additional questions, the project team will continue to engage them as the 
design evolves.  Through all neighborhood meetings, the neighborhood has expressed 
overwhelming support for the University to purchase these properties and trust that the 
University will be a good steward of the properties.  

a) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable), and 
any other official planning and development policies of the City. 

The parcels are both located within the University City Civic Complex Historic District.  The 
proposed project complies with all municipal requirements for this historic district as 
outlined in University City Zoning Code, specifically in relation to Article VI Historic Landmarks 
and Districts, Division 7 University City Civic Complex Historic District.  

The project complies with the spirit of these regulations by virtue of the fact that: 
• Demolition is not being sought.  
• Building additions are not being proposed.  
• The only exterior alterations being proposed are those that will ensue the weather-

tightness and longevity of the building including repairs to existing roofs, tuckpointing 
as needed, and restoration of existing windows.  

a) Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards contained in 
Article 7 of the University City Zoning Code.  

See the following page for detailed parking calculations and a preliminary site plan identifying 
the parking strategy.  

A. The Assumption Greek 
Orthodox Church is listed on the 
National Register of Historic 
Places (1977). 

The Civic Plaza District (in red) is 
a National Historic District.  

The district’s underlying concept is “a group of buildings 
of strongly geometric shapes, each different but united 
by materials, scale, and formality.  



Per University City Municipal Code, Section 400.2010, locations for off-site parking 
must meet the following requirements: 

• All off-site parking must be within 500’ from the nearest primary entrance to the 
principal building being served

• Off-site parking shall not be located so as to cause persons to cross an arterial 
street (Delmar is defined explicitly as such).  

• The route to off-site parking must ensure ADA parking spaces are provided an 
ADA compliant route to the nearest ADA entrance.  

Single Family Residential District 500’ Radius Arterial Street

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Parking

These requirements result in extremely limited options for parking for these 
buildings.  Due to this, the project intends to reuse the shared parking lot between 
the two buildings and construct a new surface parking lot immediately to the west of 
the 5560 Music Building.  This approach is allowable because all parcels have the 
same owner.  

Per Section 400.2010 of Zoning Code: 

If parking is to be located elsewhere than on the lot on which the principal 
use is located, then the off-site property to be utilized for parking shall be in 
the same possession (either by deed, or by easement, or long-term lease 
which has a term equal to or exceeding the projected life or term of lease of 
the facility bound by covenants filed in the office of the St. Louis County 
Recorder of Deeds) as the owner of the principal use, except as provided for 
in Section 400.2130. In addition, the owner of property used for off-site 
parking shall be bound by covenants filed in the office of the St. Louis County 
Recorder of Deeds requiring such owner, successors, and assigns to maintain 
the required number of off-street parking spaces during the existence of 
such principal use utilizing the property for parking.

It is worth noting, that anyone purchasing these buildings will be required to 
comply with these requirements.  Because the University owns the 560 Music 
Building, the solution this project proposes is the only solution possible that meets 
all current zoning requirements.  

https://ecode360.com/28294464#28294464


Section 400.2140 Schedule of Off-Street Parking Space Requirements

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Parking Space Requirements



Section 400.2140 Schedule of Off-Street Parking Space Requirements

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Parking Space Requirements (cont’d.)



Metric 
(Per Zoning Code)

Area
(NSF per Program)

Notes

Offices
“Offices, other than dental and 
medical offices, or offices associated 
with banking or other financial 
institutions”

1 space for each 300 
square feet of floor area

5,460 NSF
All faculty and staff offices, office support spaces 
(including office suite reception areas) have been 
included within this square footage.  

Educational Spaces
“Schools, business, professional, or 
technical schools”

1 space for every 3 
students based on total 

program capacity

99 Students 
(Total Capacity)

Per Zoning Code, this calculation encompasses the 
parking needs for all educational spaces and 
educational support spaces in this building for this 
academic department. 

= 18.2 Spaces

= 33 Spaces

Total Requirement  = 51.2 Spaces 

CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Parking Calculations

The following parking calculations apply to this project: 

• Section 400.2130 of Zoning Code: Exception For Uses Located Near 
Transit Stations And Stops. For uses located within five hundred (500) 
feet of a public transit station or stop, the off-street parking 
requirements may be reduced by ten percent (10%). The Loop Trolley 
stops and stations shall not be included in this exception.

Per Zoning Code, a 10% reduction of parking requirements is allowable 
if there is nearby public transportation.  There is a bus stop at 
Washington and Trinity, which is well within the 500’ requirement.   Total Requirement 

with Allowable 

10% Reduction

=  46 Spaces 

Additional Parking Considerations:
_

There are 15 FTE (full-time equivalent)
employees, inclusive of faculty and staff, 
employed by the Department.  Staff will 
arrive in the morning, as part of regular 
commuter traffic, work within the building 
all day, and leave in the evening.  

_

Courses are primarily held during the Fall 
and Spring semesters, Monday – Friday 
from 9 AM to 5 PM, with peak academic 
hours of 10 AM to 3 PM.  

Of the 99 total students, 29 are majors or 
minors in the department and will be 
within the buildings for extended periods 
of time.  The remaining 70 students take a 
single elective course and will be at the 
building infrequently.

In addition to the nearby public
transportation bus stop, the University will 
provide a shuttle directly to the building.  
Based on historic shuttle usage on 
campus, it is expected that a majority of
students will use the shuttle.  Freshmen 
are not allowed to have cars on campus 
and of the students allowed to have cars 
on campus, approximately 50% of them 
actually do.  



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Site Plan - Existing

Currently, 6900 & 6901 have a shared parking 
lot with a total of 15 parking spaces.  

This parking lot previously accommodated 
church staff, commercial tenants in 6900, and 
until 2020 it supported the UUM Preschool 
which operated out of 6901.  With the 
preschool driving heavy peak traffic demands in 
this area, pick-up and drop-off traffic was 
accommodated through street parking, the 560 
drive lane, and the Trinity “spur road” out of 
necessity.  

For reference: The 560 drive lane includes 
marked parking for 5 ADA spaces and 4 
temporary drop-off spaces (with a posted 30-
minute time limit).  

The 6900 building does have an existing drop-off 
along Trinity.  The size and turning radius of this 
drop-off does not accommodate truck traffic.  
The width of the drive lane does not 
accommodate parking while allowing one-way 
traffic.  There is no marked parking here.  



Existing Parking: 
• (15) Spaces @ 6900 / 6901
• (5) ADA Spaces + Temporary Drop-off @ 560
• (8) Spaces @ Trinity Spur Road

Proposed Parking: 
• (15) Spaces @ 6900 / 6901
• (51) Spaces @ 560

A total of 66 parking spaces is accommodated.  

Parking Loss: 
• (-8) Spaces @ Trinity Spur
• (-5) ADA Spaces @ 560

A Net Addition of 53 Spaces to the site (from the 
existing condition) is possible.  

Reminder: 46 spaces will be required for this project.
Note: A variety of parking configurations that meet the 
required 46 spaces can be achieved on this site and 
within the parameters of University City’s municipal 
code.  A range of options were reviewed with 
neighborhood community groups, with this plan being 
the preferred approach.  

Delmar Blvd. 

Washington Ave.

15 Spaces

51 

Spaces

6900 

Delmar

6901 

Washington
560  Music 

Building

12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

Site Plan – Proposed 

(Preliminary Scenario)

Disclaimer: 
1. Site plan is preliminary, created to test parking 

capacity to meet municipal zoning requirements 
for the site.  

2. Site plan requires review by Historic Preservation
Commission and Traffic Commission.  

3. A traffic study is underway, but yet to be 
completed.  

A site plan has been created to test the carrying
capacity of the site and opportunities to improve the 
flow of vehicular traffic while increasing pedestrian 
safety.  A future detailed site plan review will occur as 
part of the University City municipal review process.  



CHRISTNER ARCHITECTS   + 12/2/2022
Washington University in St. Louis

Academic Department Relocation

1. Description of the proposed Conditional Use, in narrative form.  Please 
include historical information about the applicant, the company and/or the 
organization.  Explain why this particular site was chosen for the proposal, 
state the number of employees that will be working at the site, state the 
hours of operations, explain other features unique to the proposed use and 
submit any other information that will help the Plan Commission and City 
Council in their decisions.  

(See project introduction section at beginning of this memo.)

• 15 FTE (Full-time equivalent) employees will work at the site.  The 
15 FTE’s will be spread across the two buildings.  

• The buildings core hours will be 9:00 AM – 5:00 PM, Monday 
through Friday.  

1. Estimated impact of the conditional use on the surrounding properties and 
adjacent streets, including, but not limited to, average daily and peak hour 
traffic generation, existing traffic volumes of adjacent streets, if available, 
use of outdoor intercoms, and any other operational characteristics of the 
proposed use that may have impacts on other adjacent or nearby 
properties.  

A comprehensive traffic study is underway, but not yet available.  A 
traffic engineer has been consulted to provide guidance on trip 
generation, with that assessment included to the right.

The trip generation represents an improvement over the previous 
condition where peak traffic congestion (occurring during the 
simultaneous arrival of commercial tenants and preschool drop-off and 
pick-up) aligned with traditional neighborhood commuter traffic.  In this 
new scenario, peak traffic demands will occur mid-day during the week.  

1. Legal description of the property(s) proposed for the Conditional Use Permit, 
when the proposed use involves a substantial addition of new construction. 

(Not applicable.)

Traffic Trip Generation - Summary

Land Use

AM Commuter 

Peak Hour 1
Weekday Midday 

Peak Hour 2
PM Commuter

Peak Hour 3

In Out Total In Out Total In Out Total

Adaptive Re-Use of 6900 Delmar & 

6901 Washington
26 1 27 24 24 48 1 26 27

1.)  15 Faculty arriving + 10 students + 1 shuttle arriving and departing
2.)  23 Students + 1 shuttle arriving and departing 
3.)  15 Faculty departing + 10 students + 1 shuttle arriving and departing



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
Under Article 11 of the Zoning Code of University City, Missouri 

 
 
1. Address/Location of Site/Building: ________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Zoning District (check one): 
 
       SR           LR           MR           HR           HRO           GC           LC           CC           IC           PA           PD  
 
3. Applicant’s Name, Corporate or DBA Name, Address and Daytime Telephone:_____________________ 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
4. Applicant’s Interest in the Property:         Owner          Owner Under Contract          Tenant* 
        Tenant Under Contract*          Other* (explain):
 ___________________________________________ 
 
* Please Note: Zoning Code Section 34-131.1 requires that the application may only come from one (1) or more 
of the owners of record or owners under contract of a lot of record (or zoning lot), or their authorized 
representative.  If you are applying as a tenant, tenant under contract or other, you must attach a letter from the 
owner stating you are an authorized representative of them and they give you permission to file this application 
for Conditional Use on their behalf. 
 
5. Owner’s Name, Corporate or DBA Name, Address and Daytime Telephone, if other than Applicant: 
 

 

 

staceyw
Text Box
6900 Delmar Blvd & 6901 Washington Ave. 

staceyw
Text Box
X

staceyw
Text Box
X

staceyw
Text Box
Authorized Representative: Stacey Wehe, AIA, Managing Principal, Christner Architects.  

staceyw
Text Box
Owner Under Contract: The Washington UniversityCampus Box 1058One Brookings DriveSt. Louis, MO 63130Attention: Steve Condrin, Assistant Vice Chancellor for Real Estate(314) 935-5963

staceyw
Text Box
Owner Under Contract has identified an Authorized Representative to file Application.  

staceyw
Text Box
621 North Skinker, Suite 220; St. Louis MO 63130               Phone: (314) 561-4448

staceyw
Text Box
Owner (6901 Washington): Chairman of the Board of TrusteesGrace United Methodist Church6199 WatermanSt. Louis, MO 63112Attention: Ted Dearing, Dearing Batten & Bauer LLC(314) 863-2700

staceyw
Text Box
Owner (6900 Delmar): RDI Real Estate, LLC6900 Delmar Blvd.St. Louis, MO 63130Attention: Dan Rossini, Northstar Group (314) 568-4023

staceyw
Snapshot



 
c) Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

d) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if applicable), and any 
other official planning and development policies of the City. 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
e) Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards contained in Article 
7 of the University City Zoning Code 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
** Please Note: You should also submit twelve (12) copies of a memo detailing the following information: 
1) Description of the proposed Conditional Use, in narrative form.  Please include historical information about the 
applicant, the company and/or the organization.  Explain why this particular site was chosen for the proposal, 
state the number of employees that will be working at the site, state the hours of operation, explain other features 
unique to the proposed use and submit any other information that will help the Plan Commission and City Council 
in their decisions.  2) Estimated impact of the conditional use on the surrounding properties and adjacent streets, 
including, but not limited to, average daily and peak hour traffic generation, existing traffic volumes of adjacent 
streets, if available, use of outdoor intercoms, and any other operational characteristics of the proposed use that 
may have impacts on other adjacent or nearby properties.  3) Legal description of the property(s) proposed for the 
Conditional Use Permit, when the proposed use involves a substantial addition or new construction. 
 
A Public Hearing before the Plan Commission is required by Ordinance.  Notice of such Public Hearing must be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen (15) days in advance.  Upon receipt of a Plan 
Commission Recommendation, the City Council must consider this application and supporting information before 
a Use Permit may be granted.  A fee of $114 must accompany this application. 
 
_________________________  __________________________________________________________ 
Date                                  Applicant’s Signature and Title 
 

__________________________________________________________ 
Representing (if applicable) 
 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
____________________________ Application First Received. 
 
____________________________ Application Fee in the Amount of $____________________  Receipt #____________________ 
 
____________________________ Application returned for corrections, additional data. 
____________________________ Final complete application received. 
____________________________ File # _____________created. K;\wpoffice\wpdata\f-cupfrm.doc 

staceyw
Text Box
See attachment A. 

staceyw
Text Box
See attachment A. 

staceyw
Text Box
See attachment A. 

staceyw
Arrow

staceyw
Text Box
See attachment A. 

staceyw
Text Box
12/5/2022

staceyw
Text Box
The Washington University

staceyw
Text Box
Stacey Wehe, Managing PrincipalChristner Architects





  

 
 
 
Department of Community Development 

6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
MEETING DATE:  December 14, 2022 
 
FILE NUMBER:  TXT 22-04 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:  N/A 
 
Applicant: City of University City 
 
Request: Amend §400.030 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Definitions, to 

change the definition of “Dormitory.”  

  
 
Proposed Amendment to Section 400.030 Definitions: 

Current definition of “Dormitory” 

Any premises providing group sleeping or living accommodations for four (4) or more unrelated 
persons associated with an institution.  

 
Proposed definition of “Dormitory” 

A building or portion thereof which contains living quarters for students, staff or members of an 
accredited college, university, boarding school, theological school, hospital, religious order, or 
comparable organization; provided that said building is owned and managed by said organization. 
 
 

A dormitory currently is a conditional use in the following University City Zoning Districts: 

▪ “SR” – Single-Family Residential 

▪ “LR” – Limited Residential 

▪ “MR” Medium Density Residential 

▪ “HR” High Density Residential 

▪ “HRO” High Density Residential/Office 

▪ “LC” Limited Commercial 

▪ “PA” Public Activity 

 

This amendment could affect other zoning code provisions, the property maintenance code and 
the building code. Further amendments to these codes could be warranted after additional 
research.   

 

 



BY-LAWS OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 

Article I 

AUTHORITY AND OBJECTIVES 

Section 1. Powers & duties of the Plan Commission (hereinafter referred to as “the Commission”) are set forth in Article 
VIII of the Charter of University City, Article I Section 120.020 and Article IV, Sections 120.070 through 120.090, and Title 
IV of University City Government Code. 

Section 2. Rules of the Commission must conform to the provisions of Missouri State Law.  Specifically, the Commission 
must act in accord with the Sunshine Law and its rules for public and private meetings and adequate notice of meetings, 
which generally refers to Missouri Open Meetings and Records Act as found in Sections 610.010 through 610.035 of the 
Revised Missouri Statutes.  The Sunshine Law pertains to e-mail messages that are transmitted or re-transmitted among 
the members of public governmental bodies.  Any member of a Commission that transmits and e-mail to at least three 
other members of the body so that when counting the sender, a majority of members are copied, a copy of the e-mail or 
the member forwarding the business-related e-mail to additional member(s), which would constitute the majority, shall 
be sent to the Director of Community Development for appropriate storage and retention. 

Article II 

MEMBERSHIP 

The Plan Commission shall consist of seven (7) citizen members, appointed by the City Council in accordance with 
Section XII of the University City Council Rules of Order and Procedure (27 June 2011) and duly sworn according to 
Missouri state statute. In addition, one member of the City Council to be designated by the Council, the city Manager, 
the Director of Community Development and his/her designee, and the Zoning Administrator of University City shall be 
ex-officio members and shall have no vote upon matters coming before the Commission.  If there are less than seven 
citizen members, the definition of quorum remains unchanged (Article V, Section 3.) 

Article III 

OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 

Section 1.  Officers of the Commission shall be Chair, Vice-Chair, and Designated Alternate.   

Section 2.  The Chair shall preside at all meetings and hearings of the Plan Commission and shall have the duties 
normally conferred by parliamentary usage on such officer, including the appointment of all committees. The 
Chair shall preside at all meetings of the Commission.  In the absence or inability of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall 
preside.  In the absence of both the Chair and Vice-Chair, the Designated Alternate shall preside. 

ARTICLE IV 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Section 1.  The election of the Chair, Vice-Chair and Designated Alternate of the Plan Commission shall be held at 
the first regular meeting each calendar year.   Nominations shall be made from the floor and the election shall 
follow immediately thereafter. 

Section 2.  A candidate receiving a majority vote of the quorum present shall be declared elected and shall serve 
for one (1) year or until his/her successor shall take office. 

Section 3.  Vacancies in the Offices of Chair, Vice-Chair, and Designated Alternate shall be filled for the unexpired 
portion of the term at the next meeting at which a quorum is present, using the regular election procedure. 

ARTICLE V 

Commented [MH1]: Instead of repeating section of Code 
(thus requiring updates of these bylaws for any changes), 
simply refer to appropriate sections. 

Commented [MH2]: The Council Rules already define 
this.  We don't need to repeat 

Commented [MH3]: "Public affairs" isn't really defined, 
so delete.  Enumerate the responsibilities off each officers. 

Commented [MH4]: Don't really need to articulate all of 
these. 



MEETINGS 

Section 1.  The regular meetings of the Plan Commission shall be held on the fourth Wednesday of each month, 
unless otherwise agreed to by a vote of the majority of the entire commission. The Commission may, by majority 
vote of the quorum present, dispense with any regular meeting.  If there is no business to conduct, a meeting 
may be cancelled by the Director of Community Development with the consent of the Chair.  A schedule of 
regular meetings will be determined during the preceding year by the Commission and printed in the City 
Calendar, City website and on the City marquees.   

Section 2.  Special meetings of the Plan Commission may be called by the Chair, or during his/her absence, by the Vice-
Chair, or by any two (2) voting members of the Commission.  The Director of Community Development shall prepare a 
notice of a special meeting and shall make a diligent effort to notify each Commissioner, either by telephone, mail, or e-
mail, of such special session.  If a majority of the Commission does not attend the special meeting, then discussion may 
be held at the discretion of the Chair but matters to be voted upon must wait until a quorum is present at another 
special or regular meeting.  Minutes will not be made of any Commission meeting when a quorum is not present. 

Section 3.  A majority of the appointed and sworn members of the Commission shall constitute a quorum.  All efforts 
should be expended to ensure that a quorum of Commissioners is present at all meetings.  Commissioners attending a 
meeting via audio or video conference are deemed present for purposes of participating in a roll call vote to the same 
effect as Commissioners who are in physical attendance at the meeting.  If, at any time during a meeting, one or more of 
the elements of a video conference becomes compromised (e.g., if any participants are unable to see, hear, or fully 
communicate), then the video conference participant is deemed immediately absent and this absence should be 
reflected in the minutes.   If the audio or video conference fails during the act of voting, the voting shall stop until all of 
the components of the conference attendance are restored, and the audio/video conference participant’s presence is 
again noted in the minutes.  If the audio/video conference cannot be restored during voting, the participant will be 
deemed immediately absent and will not participate in the vote.  Commission meeting minutes shall reflect the 
Commissioner, if any, participating via audio/video conference. 

Section 4.  If meeting is virtual/hybrid all commissioners not physically present a meeting location on the agenda shall 
have their camera on and face visible to the chair to be considered present.  Audio-only participation by a commissioner 
shall only occur when video-access is not available and must be approved by Chair in advance of the 
meeting.  Commissioners may turn camera off from time to time during the meeting for brief periods.  However, the 
Chair may, at his/her discretion, determine that commissioner to be absent for the agenda item(s) of business under 
consideration.  Virtual participants should have their camera on when they are addressing the commission, unless 
otherwise approved by the chair.  Audio-only is always acceptable for citizen comments. 

Section 5.  The Director of Community Development shall make a good faith effort to notify all members of the 
Plan Commission not less than five (5) days in advance of meetings, of the purposes of the meeting and shall 
furnish a copy of the agenda and of the Minutes of the prior meeting. 

  

Section 6.  Except as otherwise provided by the Charter or by these bylaws, the proceedings of the Commission shall be 
guided by Robert’s Rules of Order, as Revised.  The presiding officer shall preserve the decorum and shall decide all 
questions of order, subject to appeal to the Commission.  As per Robert Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11th Edition, the 
minutes of the meetings of the Plan Commission “shall be a record of what was done at a meeting, not what was said by 
the members.” 

Section 7.  At regular meetings of the Plan Commission, the order of business shall be as follows (this may be changed by 
majority vote of the Commission): 

• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 

Commented [MH5]: Need to consistently refer to (and 
capitalize)either "special meeting" or "special session."  
Standardized on "special meeting." 

Commented [MH6]: Long discussion about this topic:  
how to police? 65 seconds?  The conclusion was to give the 
Chair discretion.  If a member missed critical information, 
they will be precluded from voting on the matter. 

Commented [MH7]: We have clearly not adhered to this 
for some time.  Sunshine Law only requires 24 hour notice 
of public meetings, so we can be flexible. 

Commented [MH8]: This is covered by state stature.  WE 
don't need to repeat. 

Commented [MH9]: This is merely establishing 
consistent capitalization patterns 



• Public Comments on Non-agenda Items 
• Approval of Minutes 
• Old Business 

o Staff Report 
o Applicant Presentation (10 minutes) 
o Public Hearing (if required, 3-minute limit for each speaker) 
o Commission Questions for Staff or Applicant 
o End Applicant Comments 
o Motion 
o Discussion 
o Ask for Any New Factual Information from Applicant (3-minute limit) 
o Vote 

• New Business (inclusive of text amendments) 
o Staff Report 
o Applicant Presentation (10 minutes) 
o Public Hearing (if required, 3-minute limit for each speaker) 
o Commission Questions for Staff or Applicant 
o End Applicant Comments 
o Motion 
o Discussion 
o Ask for Any New Factual Information from Applicant (3-minute limit) 

• VoteOther Business 
• Reports 

o Code Review Committee 
o Comprehensive Plan Committee 
o Council Liaison 
o Staff 
o Housing and Third Ward Revitalization Task Force 

 

ARTICLE VI 

ATTENDANCE 

Section 1.  Members of the Plan Commission shall attend regular and special meetings unless their absence is excused 
for cause.  If Commissioners know in advance that they cannot attend a specific Commission meeting, they must inform 
the Chair and the Director of Community Development. 

Section 2.  No Commissioner may leave the meeting while in session without acknowledgement from the presiding 
officer.  If/when a conflict of interest exists on an agenda item, the Commissioner with the conflict shall recuse 
himself/herself until the vote is concluded. 

Section 3.  The City Council shall be advised in writing of any member who, without notification of the Chair and 
the Director of Community Development, has failed to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Plan 
Commission, or has failed to attend five (5) meetings during a period of twelve (12) consecutive months. 

ARTICLE VII 

COMMITTEES 

Section 1.  The Chair shall appoint members of all standing committees by the next regular meeting following the 
annual election of the Chair and may in his/her discretion remove any person, at any time, from a committee or 
as the Chair thereof. 

Commented [MH10]: Lots of conversation here about 
what constitutes a "good cause".  Notification should go to 
both the Chair & Director of Community Development (easy 
enough to copy on email/text) so that tracking can be done 
(See Section 3) 



Section 2.  Each S”tanding Committee shall consist of a Chair and at least two (2) other members as appointed by the 
Chair of the Plan Commission.   If a majority of Committee constitutes a quorum of the Commission constitutes a 
majority of the Commission, the University City Open Meetings and Records Policy (Chapter 150.040 of University City 
Code) shall apply, specifically with regard to public notice of meetings and public participation. 

Section 3.  The Chair of the Plan Commission shall be an ex-officio member of all committees.  He/she shall only 
vote upon committee matters when a majority of committee members is not present. 

Section 4.  There shall be appointed by the Chair of the Plan Commission Standing Committees for the 
consideration of the following matters and making recommendation thereof to the Plan Commission: 

1. Comprehensive Plan Committee:  This committee shall provide guidance and assist in the preparation 
and review of the City’s Comprehensive Plan and its updates. 

2. Code Review Committee:  This committee shall consider and review all proposed text amendments to 
Chapters 400 (Zoning Code) and Chapter 405 (Subdivision and Land Development Regulations) of the 
University City Code of Ordinances 

Section 5.  The Chair of the Plan Commission may establish Ad Hoc Committees and appoint members for such 
purposes as necessary or as may be authorized by the Plan Commission.  The duration of Ad Hoc committees is to 
be determined by the Chair of the Plan Commission.   

 

Adopted On:  August 24, 2011 

Revised On:  ___________, 2022 

 

__________________________________ 

Margaret A. R. Holly, Chair 

University City Plan Commission 

Commented [MH11]: Since we already said (Section 1) 
that the members shall be appointed "...by the next regular 
meeting following the annual election of the Chair," a one 
year term is already defined. 


	1. 2022-12-14-Plan Commission Meeting Agenda
	2. Minutes to approve on Dec.14
	2022-08-24-Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
	2022-09-28-Plan Commission Meeting Minutes
	2022-10-26 Plan Commission Meeting Minutes

	3. PC PACKET - 7701 Canton
	PC Memo for 7701 Canton (Dec 14)
	PreserveCanton - Revised Plans and Renderings
	20220728_21015_Concept-1 (1) (1).pdf
	Sheets and Views
	21015_Concept-TJR-Layout 7-COLOR




	4. PC PACKET - FDP-22-05
	Staff Report - FDP-22-05 Market at Olive Lot B
	Department of Community Development
	Existing Property
	Applicant’s Request
	Analysis
	Conclusion/Recommendation

	1 - Final Development Plan
	Sheets and Views
	6193-entitlements-LOT B C1.0 TITLE SHEET (3)
	6193-entitlements-LOT B C2.0 EX COND AND DEMO (2)
	6193-entitlements-LOT B C3.0 SITE PLAN (2)
	6193-entitlements-LOT B C4.0 GRADING (2)
	6193-entitlements-LOT B C5.0 UTILITY (2)


	2 - Building Elevations
	Sheets
	PRESENTATION 1 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS & MATERIALS
	PRESENTATION 2 - SOUTHEAST PERSPECTIVE
	PRESENTATION 3 - SOUTHWEST PERSPECTIVE


	3 - Landscape Plan
	4 - Photometric Plan

	5. PC PACKET - REZ-22-11
	Staff Report - REZ-22-11 Market at Olive - Lot C
	1 - Map Amendment Application
	6193 Zoning Map Amendment Application SIGNED
	Lot C rezoning app attachment

	2 - Preliminary Site Development Plan
	Sheets and Views
	6193-anchor B entitlements-C1.0 TITLE SHEET
	6193-anchor B entitlements-C2.0 EX COND AND DEMO
	6193-anchor B entitlements-C3.0 SITE PLAN
	6193-anchor B entitlements-C4.0 GRADING
	6193-anchor B entitlements-C5.0 UTILITY


	3 - Building Elevations

	6. PC PACKET - CUP 22-13
	1. CUP 22-13 Staff Memo
	2. CUP Application_Attachment A_2022-12-02
	3. f-cupfrm_CUP Application - 6900 + 6901
	4. UCity Auth Letter - 6901 WA & 6900 Delmar (signed) 12-5-2022

	7. TXT 22-04 Dormitory Text Amendment
	8. 221104 By-Laws of the City Plan Commission of University City Missouri



